AGENDA PACKET

Board of Director of Tarrant Appraisal District
Budget Workshop
June 3, 2021



Tarrant Appraisal District

Notice is hereby given that on June 3, 2021, the Board of Directors
of Tarrant Appraisal District will meet in open session beginning at 9:00 a.m.
via telephone conference call

To access the meeting via telephone
Use the following toll-free number:
1-844-992-4726
Event / Access Code 182 314 9906
If you have no attendee number, press # to proceed.

Due to health and safety concerns related to the COVID-19 epidemic, this
meeting will be conducted by telephone conference call in accordance with
the Texas Open Meeting Act, suspensions of certain requirements of the
Act announced by the Office of the Texas Governor on March 16, 2020 and
applicable directives and guidance from the Governor since the state of
disaster was first declared on March 13, 2020. Members of the Board may
attend in person at Tarrant Appraisal District offices or remotely.

To view the agenda packet go to:
https://www.tad.org/about/board-of-directors/

The public is invited to attend by telephone call only by calling the phone
number and using the Event / Access Code above. The public is invited to
address the Board only during the Public Comments period under Agenda
Item 4 regarding any item on the Agenda and other issues under the
Board’s jurisdiction. To do so, contact Carol Thornton at
cthornton@tad.org or 817-595-6004 before noon (12:00 p.m.) on
Wednesday, June 2, 2021.

During the Public Comments period, the Chairman will allow each speaker
five minutes but may expand the time as needed if doing so will not
interfere with the Board’'s completing its business and adjourning its
meeting at a reasonable time. The Board may refuse to hear comments on
subjects not reasonably related to items on the Agenda, to policies and
procedures of Tarrant Appraisal District or Tarrant Appraisal Review Board,
or to other issues under the Board’s jurisdiction. The Board may not
respond to comments regarding items not on the Agenda.

Page 1 of 2
2



AGENDA

1. Call to Order

2. Verify Presence of Quorum and Posting of Meeting Notice
3. Pledges of Allegiance; Invocation
4. Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments
5. Budget Workshop — discussion only; no action to be taken
6. Action Items
a. Consideration and action regarding approval of the Minutes from May 14,

2021 board meeting

b. Review and approve professional service agreements, billing agreements
in amount exceeding $50,000 on an annual basis or that exceed or are
expected to exceed $50,000 on an annual basis. Based on 2020 total
payments, 2021 projected total payments, and projected total payments in
the proposed 2022 budget, the following payees fit or fall just under these
criteria:

Ardent Creative, Inc.

Aumentum Technologies, a Division of Manatron, Inc. (end user
license agreements)

Aumentum Technologies, a Division of Manatron, Inc.
(maintenance, escrow)

Catherine Jane Alder, P.C.

CoStar Realty Information, Inc.

Frost Insurance Agency, Inc.

Kurt Myers, previously also J.K. Consulting, LLC
Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith L.L.P.
Purdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins & Mott, L.L.P.
Pictometry International Corp.

Pritchard & Abbott, Inc.

Tarrant County

Trepp, LLC

7. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn

Jeff Law
Executive Director / Chief Appraiser

Page 2 of 2
3



Discussion Item 5: Budget Workshop — No action will be taken



Agenda item 6(a): Consideration and action regarding Approval of the Minutes
from May 14, 2021 board meeting



Tarrant Appraisal District
Board of Directors Meeting Minutes
May 14, 2021

Due to health and safety concerns related to the COVID-19 epidemic,
the May 14, 2021 meeting was conducted by telephone conference call
in accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act, suspensions of
certain requirements of the Act announced by the Office of the Texas
Governor on March 16, 2020 and applicable directives and guidance
from the Governor since the state of disaster was first declared on
March 13, 2020. A quorum of members of the Board attended in
person at Tarrant Appraisal District offices or remotely.

These Minutes are a summary of only the subjects the Board
addressed and the actions it took. For details, see the Agenda,
complete Agenda Packet, and full Audio Recording of the May 14, 2021
meeting that are posted on Tarrant Appraisal District’'s website at this
URL:

https://www.tad.org/about/board-of-directors/
Times noted in parentheses below refer to that Audio Recording.

Members present:

Ms. Kathryn Wilemon, Chairman (left meeting at approx. 1:55:35)

Mr. Rich DeOtte, Secretary

Ms. Wendy Burgess (attended remotely; left meeting at approx. 0:60:00)
Mr. Gary Losada

Mr. J. R. Martinez (attended remotely; left meeting at approx. 0:51:00)
Mr. Tony Pompa

Also participating:
Mr. Jeff Law, Chief Appraiser
Ms. Catherine Alder, District’s attorney

Ms. Wilemon called the meeting to order; Mr. Law verified the presence of a quorum (with
all six members present in person or remotely) and the timely posting of notice of the
meeting; Mr. DeOtte led the pledges of allegiance and Rev. Wooddell delivered the

invocation. The Board then took up the following Agenda items.

4,

Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments (starts at 0:05:48)

The Board recognized and heard comments from Mr. Chandler Crouch (starts at
0:06:02), Mr. Will Wiggins (starts at 0:11:40), Mr. Chris Bawcom (starts at 0:19:37),

and Mr. Steven Dunson (starts at 0:21:22).

Action Items (starts at 0:31:22)

Page 1 of 3



Mr. DeOtte asked to pull Item 5(a)(3) from the Consent Agenda. (starts at 0:31:25)

a. Consent Agenda Items (starts at 0:31:40)

Mr. DeOtte moved to approve Consent Agenda Items 5(a)(1) and 5(a)(2);
Mr. Pompa seconded the motion; and the motion carried unanimously.

(1

(3)

Consideration and action regarding Approval of the Minutes from
March 26, 2021 board meeting

The Board of Directors Meeting Minutes March 26, 2021 approved
are included in the Agenda Packet for this meeting.

Consideration and action regarding Request for Approval of the
Continued Periodic Replacement of Desktop Personal Computers
(PCs)

Staff Recommendation Approved:

Move approval for the Continued Periodic Replacement of Desktop
Personal Computers (PCs) for the TAD staff in an amount not to
exceed $39,000 utilizing Texas DIR contract CIE-TSO-3763.

Consideration and action on the proposal that Board of Directors
review professional service agreements in amounts exceeding
$50,000 on an annual basis at a budget workshop each year prior to
the submission of a proposed budget to the tax units that participate
in the TAD budget (having been removed from Consent Agenda and
its discussion combined with discussion of Item 5(c), starts at
0:50:02)

Mr. DeOtte amended his previous motion on Item 5(a)(3) to state,
“Consideration and action on the proposal that the Board of Directors
review and approve on an annual basis professional service
agreements, billing agreements in amounts exceeding $50,000 on
an annual basis or at such time that expenditures exceed $50,000”
(starts at 1:48:43); Mr. Losada seconded the motion as amended,;
Ms. Wilemon called for a vote on the motion as amended (starts at
1:54); Ms. Wilemon, Mr. DeOtte, Mr. Losada, and Mr. Pompa voted
Yes; the motion on ltem 5(a)(3) as amended passed unanimously.

b. Consideration and action regarding accepting the Tarrant Appraisal District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2020 (starts at 0:32:30)

Page 2 of 3



o N®

Mr. DeOtte moved to accept the Report; Mr. Pompa seconded the motion;
all members voted and the motion passed unanimously. (starts at 0:49:50)

C. Consideration and action on a proposal that professional service
agreements greater than $50,000 conform to an hourly billing measure
unless other arrangements are approved by the Board of Directors
(discussion included in discussion of Item 5(a)(3), starts at 0:50:02)

The Board took no action on Item 5(c).

Discussion Items

Information Items

Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn

The meeting ended at about 1:55:35 without taking up Items 6 through 8.

Page 3 of 3



Agenda item 6(b): Review and approve professional service agreements, billing
agreements in amount exceeding $50,000 on an annual basis
or that exceed or are expected to exceed $50,000 on an annual
basis. Based on 2020 total payments, 2021 projected total
payments, and projected total payments in the proposed 2022
budget, the following payees fit or fall just under these criteria:

Ardent Creative, Inc.
e Aumentum Technologies, a Division of Manatron, Inc. (end
user license agreements)
e Aumentum Technologies, a Division of Manatron, Inc.
(maintenance, escrow)
Catherine Jane Alder, P.C.
CoStar Realty Information, Inc.
Frost Insurance Agency, Inc.
Kurt Myers, previously also J.K. Consulting, LLC
Nichols, Jackson, Dillard, Hager & Smith L.L.P.
Purdue, Brandon, Fielder, Collins & Mott, L.L.P.
Pictometry International Corp.
Pritchard & Abbott, Inc.
Tarrant County
Trepp, LLC

The chart on following pages summarizes 2020 total payments, 2021 projected total
payments, and projected total payments in the proposed 2022 budget to the payees
listed above. All payments made were within the amounts and for the purposes
authorized by the 2020 and 2021 approved budgets. All vendors were selected as

provided by Section 14 of the Tarrant Appraisal District Purchasing Policies and

Procedures, as amended by this Board in its February 12, 2021 meeting. Section 14
provides the following:
14.0 Professional and Personal Services

14.1  TAD will not select a provider of professional services, or a group or
association of providers of professional services, or award a contract
for said services on the basis of competitive bids submitted for the
contract or for the services, but shall make the selection and award
a contract based upon the following:

14.1.1 On the basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications to
perform the services for a fair and reasonable price;



14.1.2 Negotiations with the professional organization or individual in order
to obtain the best price or value for TAD;

14.1.3 Confirmation that the professional fees under the contract are either
consistent with, but not higher than, the recommended practices and
fees published by the applicable professional association and do not
exceed any maximum provided by law;

14.1.4 Examples of professional and personal services include but may not
be limited to: real estate  appraisal services, architectural services,
engineering services, accounting services, etc.

Staff recommendation:

Approve all of the professional service agreements, billing agreements in amount
exceeding $50,000 on an annual basis or that exceed or are expected to exceed

$50,000 on an annual basis that are listed in Item 6(b) of the Agenda.

10



8ulo8uo
‘anoy 1ad g6¢ |e3ajesed ‘usyyo

"4 ‘NOW

Ll

104 anoy Jad 05z$ ‘uonesiy 18°'T69°78VS ON SOA 73 sui||o) Jap|al4
Jen8au unoy Jad §17$ S321AI3s e uopueig anpiad d
'd 1 YHwsS
0L LTS'STYS ON SIA 1 JedeH ‘pie|iq
guio3uo ‘unoy uad G8TS S9IAIDS |37 ‘uosyaef ‘sjoydiN
Sunum
ul paJ|aaued jaun ‘anoy oM
43d 069 1e Apjasmiq padtoaul Sunynsuod ‘Bunnsuo) )1
‘Y06 40 |B101 TZOTZ P39Ixd . 00'0€€'62TS ON SIA SwalsAs osie Ajsnoinaud
-0}-}0u |enuue paaJsde, uoljew.ou| ‘SIDAN 1INy
94BM1JOS
zeoz/8z/e0 8102/60/20 uipseoquo
yanouyy ‘Ajsa3enb paojoaul 00°00v‘6vS 00'00¥‘6%S$ 00°0008¥7S S9A S9A pue 3unnsuod "ou| ‘Aouadsdy
‘le101 jenuue paaJsy dueansu| dueINsu| 15044
zz0z/8z/20 Tzoz/te/eo
ysnouya ‘Ajyyuow pastoaul 00'26S°TLS TST8Y'1SS TOETT LSS S9A S9A Blep a1Ins Je1so) "Ju| ‘uollew.oyul
‘|ejo01 |[enuue paaJde J04 uonduasqns Aljeay Jeiso0)
Suio8uo ‘Ajyauow J°d ‘49pIV
PadI0Aul ‘93) 1e|} paause ov¥‘88€S Ovv‘88€S 10'v08'v6€S ON SIA SDIAIDS (B33 suef aulisyied
*Ju| ‘uoJleuen
vzoz/ie/et 1202/S1/10 waisAs J0 uoIsiAig
ysnousyy JuawAhed | 00'TSTTOES 00°L67'S6TS 00'vEV'68CS S9A S9A VINVD 10§ MOJIS3 e ‘salgojouyday
wns dwn| [enuue paaJde ‘3aueudluiep wnluawny
ejeqg *JU| ‘uoJleuen
120Z/1€/T1 ozoz/tt/za uolsidald 3100\ Jo uorsing
ysnouyi ‘uawAhed | 00°005'9LS$ TT°€€8'59$ TTLEE'L9S SIA SIA ‘YIMS 3 |[eysie N e ‘salgojouydal
wns dwn| [enuue paaJse 104 sy1n3 wnuawny
reoz/ie/Tt (Juswaauge di0°avl
y3noays ‘Ajlyruow padioaul snoinaad 1202/ST/10 J0J dueuslulew
MOO0TS JO |e101 paadxa |  00°000°00TS 00'000°00TS Japun) S9A S9A ‘Juawdojanap U]
-01-10U |enuue paaJde 96666665 EMHENYY ‘aA11B3ID JUBPIY
é13oang
139ang NI d3A0YddV
a3sodoyd aivd 39 éilva S$3sodind
NI SINJIWAVd | Ol @3123r0dd 0s 41 ‘ayvog 404 ANV
1v1i0l1 1viol SIUNLIANIAX3 40 310A SLNNOWV
IN3INIFIYOV LNIHYND a3153roydd Q31VINILLS3 1v1i01 IN:NeENWEREN NIHLIM
40 NOILVYNAa ‘SISve 334 (44114 | Y4114 0zoc 33AVd SLNINAVd S3IDIAY3S 40 3dAL 33AVd




12

ceoe/te/an
ySnouyr quawAhed |  0Z'€26'05S$ 00'0v¥'6tS 00°000'8tS 610Z/01/S0
wns dwn| jenuue paaJse SOA SIA eleq ueoiddausy J711 ‘ddausy
1202/1€/60 ysnoay 1eah |eiped avl o
VI ‘Alyyuow padioAur | 00°€ZTSTTS 00'966'TTTS 20°089'76S 0202/¥1/80 pausisse Aindag
‘lejo} ([enuue paasde SOA SOA Huays — Ayunaas Aluno) juease)
veoz/1e/et
y3nouys ‘Aiianenb padtoaur | 00°000°082$ | 00°00T°LLTS 00°00SvLTS 6102/8T/TT 8unnsuod “2ul ‘110qqy
‘e30} |enuue pasaise SOA SaA uonenjep 3 pleyoudd
veoz/1e/ct ‘di0)
ysnosyy QuawAhed | §z'90SLYES | ST90S'LYES 009266675 020Z/¥1/80 Aydeigoloyd [euoneusau|
wns dwn| [enuue paaJde SOA SOA |eusy Azpwoldid




Ardent Creative
Approved by vote of Board 01/15/2021

13



Mr. Martinez moved to elect Ms. Wilemon as Chairman; Mr. Losada offered
amendment to the motion; Mr. Martinez accepted the amendment; Mr. Losada
seconded the amended motion to elect Ms. Wilemon as Chairman and Mr. DeOtte
as Secretary for the 2021 calendar year; and the motion carried unanimously.

6. Discussion Item (starts at 54.:10)

Review of protests of property tax appraisals in Tarrant County as compared to
other major metropolitan counties and related issues

7. Action Items
a. Consider and Act on Consent Agenda Items (starts at 2:00:25)

Mr. Losada moved to approve all five items under Action Item 7(a); Mr.
Martinez seconded; motion carried unanimously.

(1)  Consider Approval of Minutes of December 11, 2020 Meeting

The minutes approved are set out in full in the Agenda Packet for the
January 15, 2021 meeting.

(2) Consider Approval of Payment for Annual Maintenance and
Support Services provided by Manatron, Inc. and Payment of
Annual Escrow Fee

Staff Recommendation approved:

Authorize payment to Manatron for invoice in total amount of
$295,297.00 for annual maintenance fees (a/k/a “Software
Support Services Fees”) in the amount of $292,672.00 and
annual escrow fee in the amount of $2,625.00.

{3) Consider Authorizing Negotiation of Professional Services
Agreement for TAD.org Maintenance, Support, and
Development for 2021

Staff recommendation approved:

Authorize staff to negotiate professional services agreement
with Ardent Creative, Inc. for continued maintenance, support,
and development of TAD.org functionality in 2021 and in an
amount not to exceed $100,000.

(4) Consider Authorizing Annual Renewal of Software Maintenance
Licenses for All ESRI Software Products in Support of the

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5
for January 15, 2021

14



TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

2500 Handley Ederville Road
Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909
Direct Line 817.595.6007 Fax 817.595.6198

Vendor: Purchase Order No. 12029
Ardent Creative
707 W. Vickery Blvd, #103 )
Fort Worth, TX 76104 ORDER DATE: 2/8/2021
TAX EXEMPTION NO. 1-75-1695033-8
Billing Address: Shipping Address:
Tarrant Appraisal District Attention:  DJ Whitehead
Attn: Accounts Payable Tarrant Appraisal District
2500 Handley-Ederville Road 2500 Handley-Ederville Road
Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909 Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909
Shipping Method: FOB:
Iitem Description Unit |Quantity| Unit Price Total Date
Required
This PO authorizes Web Services (maint, support, development) 1 $0.00 $0.00
Per the attached SOW. Costs not to exceed $100,000.00. 1 $100,000.00 $100,000.00
Start Date 1-1-2021 End Date 12-31-2021 1 $0.00 $0.00
Total Cost Not to Exceed: $100,000.00
TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

The Tarrant Appraisal District reserves the right to cancel all or any part of this order if not shipped as required or instructed.

All goods and services shall be subject to Tarrant Appraisal District approval. Unsatisfactory goods will be returned at the vendor's expense.
No substitute will be accepted without prior written approval from the Tarrant Appraisal District Purchasing Division.

No federal, state or city tax shall be included when goods are delivered to the above address.

No responsibility will be assumed for verbal orders given by employees outside the Purchasing Department.

No additional charge will be allowed for packing, crating, boxing, and/or handling.

Cash discount period will date from the date of receipt of goods at delivery destination.

DELIVERY NOTE: Only deliver 8:15 A.M. til 4:30 P.M. - Monday through Friday (Except Holidays)

Contact Purchasing for questions regarding this purchase order.
Direct Line: 817.595.6007 Fax: 817.595.6198

15




16



Tarrant County Appraisal District

1/22/2021

Mr. Don Morris,

On behalf of our entire team here at Ardent Creative Inc., we would like to thank you for
the opportunity to work with you. Ardent Creative is a full-service creative agency
specializing in Web Design, Web Development and Digital Marketing .

Here we present our estimate for your requested project.

Sincerely,

David Canington
Ardent Creative Inc.

The best way to predict the future is to create it. Live Your Dreams.

17



Summary Scope of Work

Ardent Creative will work with Tarrant Appraisal District to update, design, build and
integrate various applications into the website.

includes:

Project Management, Strategy Planning, Account Management, Content Creation
and/or Implementation, Responsive Design and Development, 3rd party integration

Scope of Work:

The goal of the 2021 monthly maintenance proposail is to build on the foundation of
the work performed for TAD in 2021 and to set a goal of continuous improvement, first
in class service, and leading edge technology for its customers. We want to help TAD
be a forerunner in its industry by using technology to provide streamlined processes
to its customers.

Goals for 2021

e Enhance the authentication, validation, and ease of signing up for online account
holders.

e Accomplish updates and upgrades to the WordPress framework, Elastic Search,
and other supporting software programs.

e Enhance the ‘View Documents’, ‘ARB Evidence’, and ‘My Dashboard’ features
for TAD.org online account holders as well as ‘Lite Access’ users.

e Other general maintenance and support

Additional goals to look at adding per budget:
e Enhance the ‘Responsive’ web browser aspects of the site to include language
assistance services.
e Investigate opportunities for aesthetic and style modernization.

18



Term
2021 Year

Billing
Total amount paid out over 12 months.
Billed monthly net 30.

Service Hours

Support Hours: 800
Rate: $125 per hour

Estimate
Total: $100,000 not to exceed

Ardent Creative Inc. strives to provide fair
and competitive pricing for all services.
Factors for pricing could include time,
complex design concepts and any
additional design features.

Note: Applicable taxes are NOT included.
Estimate is valid for 90 days.

Sincerely,
//2/7/" %
A

&

David Canington
Ardent Creative Inc.

% | have read the above and agree to
tMe terms set forth therein.

Name

TheraT ABhich merict

Company

19



General Terms and Conditions

1. Services

Provision of Services. In consideration of the payment by Customer to Ardent Creative of
the applicable fees, Ardent Creative will provide to Customer the Services indicated on each
applicable SOW.

Subcontractors. Ardent Creative reserves the right to use subcontractors or Affiliates to
perform Services on Ardent Creative’s behalf. Ardent Creative will be responsible for the
acts or omissions of each subcontractor or Affiliate of Ardent Creative and for their
compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the same extent as
Ardent Creative is responsible for its own acts or omissions under this Agreement.

Additional Services. In the event that in the future Customer desires to obtain from Ardent
Creative additional services, the parties may execute one or more additional SOWSs, setting
forth the additional services to be provided by Ardent Creative to Customer, along with the
applicable additional fees to be paid by Customer to Ardent Creative.

Customer Obligations. Customer agrees to provide Ardent Creative with such cooperation,
materials, information, access and support which Ardent Creative deems to be reasonably
required to allow Ardent Creative to successfully provide the Services. Customer
understands and agrees that Ardent Creative's obligations hereunder are expressly
conditioned upon Customer timely providing such cooperation, materials, information,
access and support.

Customer Content. All of Customer’s data, including materials, records, scripts, content,
intellectual property, and all other tangible or intangible property of Customer, pictures,
photographs, diagrams, graphics, logos and videos of Customer, in each case to the extent
provided to Ardent Creative by Customer or on behalf of Customer by third parties in
connection with the Services (“Customer Content”) is and shall remain the exclusive
property of Customer. Customer hereby grants to Ardent Creative a nonexclusive and
royalty-free license to use such Customer Content solely in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement and any applicable SOW. Customer shall procure, at its own expense, all
necessary rights, licenses, permissions, waivers, releases and all other agreements and
documentation necessary to permit use of the Customer Content by Ardent Creative as
required for incorporation or use in connection with the Services.

Customer Approval. Customer bears sole responsibility for the final review and approval of
all editorial, textual, deliverables, materials, including but not limited to scripts, printed
material and web content, to ensure the accuracy, legality and completeness of all
information contained therein prior to the use, publication or distribution of such content
by Ardent Creative in connection with the performance of Services.

20



Third Party Sites. Customer acknowledges that Ardent Creative has no control over
Facebook, Yahoo, Google or any other third party web sites involved or used in connection
with the provision of the Services (“Third Party Sites"), and that such sites may have
technical difficulties, may change their APIs, may cancel or terminate certain programs,
block certain data or may change their terms of service and rules. Customer acknowledges
that the use and access to Third Party Sites may be subject to certain terms and conditions,
privacy policies and other requirements imposed by such sites (collectively “Third Party
Terms”). Such Third Party Terms may govern and impact Customer’s access to the sites as
well as the use and provision of Services hereunder. For example, some Third Party Terms
may require Customer to convey certain intellectual property rights or grant licenses to the
Third Party Site (or its affiliates) for any content uploaded, displayed or developed by or for
Customer for use in connection with the Third Party Site. Third Party Terms may also
include restrictions and obligations regarding Customer’s collection, possession, handling,
transfer and use of any data collected or generated in connection with the Third Party Site.
Customer hereby confirms that it shall comply with all applicable Third Party Terms and
agrees to defend and indemnity Ardent Creative regarding any claims or damages arising
as a result of Customer's breach of the foregoing.

Customer Policies. While on premises owned, controlled or hired by Customer, all Ardent
Creative personnel shall conduct themselves in professional and workmanlike manner and
shall comply with Customer’s health, safety and security policies of Customer to the extent
made known to Ardent Creative.

2. Ownership

In the course of performing Services, Ardent Creative may, at the request of Customer,
create “Deliverables”. Customer shall own all right title and interest in and to all
Deliverables created by Ardent Creative at the request of Customer, including all
intellectual property rights therein and thereto. To the extent that Ardent Creative
Intellectual Property is embedded within any Deliverables, as and how delivered, Ardent
Creative hereby grants to Customer a perpetual, royalty-free, worldwide license, without
the right to grant or authorize sublicenses, to use such Ardent Creative Intellectual Property
solely in connection with Customer’s use of such Deliverables and not separate and apart
from such Deliverables and the associated Services. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed to prohibit Ardent Creative from using for any purpose any general knowledge,
skills, techniques or methods it learns in the course of performing Services.

Ardent Creative Intellectual Property is and shall remain the sole and exclusive property of
Ardent Creative and all right, title and interest therein or related thereto, including, without
limitation, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, patents, and other intellectual property or
proprietary rights, are hereby exclusively reserved by Ardent Creative. Any third party

content or technology licensed to Customer under an SOW in connection with the Services

21



provided thereunder shall remain the property of the applicable third party licensor and
Customer’s use thereof shall at all times be subject to the terms of this Agreement and the
applicable end user licensing terms and conditions referenced and/or included in the
applicable SOW.

3. Fees, Payment and Taxes

Fees and Invoices. Fees for Services shall be set forth in the applicable SOW. Ardent
Creative will invoice Customer monthly, in arrears. Unless specifically stated otherwise in
an applicable SOW, the Customer shall reimburse Ardent Creative for reasonable travel,
accommodation, communications, equipment and out-of-pocket costs or expenses
incurred in conjunction with the Services (“Expenses”), provided that Ardent Creative must
obtain prior written approval before incurring any single Expense of more than $500.00.
Invoices for Expenses will be sent in the month following the month in which they were
incurred and payable in accordance with the payment terms set forth herein.

Payment. Unless otherwise specified on an SOW, all invoices will be paid in U.S dollars and
are due within thirty (30) days of the date of the invoice, provided that invoices for media
buys made by Ardent Creative on Customer’s behalf are due within fifteen (15) days of the
date of

the invoice. Payments will be made without right of set-off or chargeback. All monetary
amounts are specified and shall be paid in the lawful currency of the United States of
America. Customer shall pay all amounts due under this Agreement to Ardent Creative at
the address set forth herein or such other location as Ardent Creative designates in writing.
Any amount not paid when due may be subject to interest charges at the rate of one and
one half percent (1.5%) per month or, the maximum rate permitted by law, whichever is
more, determined and compounded on a daily basis from the date due until the date paid.

Unless otherwise stated in the SOW, Customer shall arrange for media purchases and
payment directly with publisher/search engine. Customer shall provide Ardent Creative
with all necessary passwords, authority and account information to enable Ardent Creative
to access Customer’s account/pages for purposes of providing the Services hereunder.

Taxes. All amounts payable by Customer to Ardent Creative under this Agreement are
exclusive of any tax, levy or similar governmental charge that may be assessed by any
jurisdiction, whether based on gross revenue, the provision of Services, the execution or
performance of this Agreement or otherwise, and including without limitation all sales, use,
excise, import or export, value added, governmental permit fees, license fees, and customs;
provided, however, that Customer shall have no liability for any net income, net worth or
franchise taxes assessed on Ardent Creative by the United States or any state or local
taxing authority.

4. Term and Termination

22



4.1 Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall, unless earlier
terminated under Section 4.2 below, continue in force for a period of one (1) year. The
initial term of this Agreement, plus any subsequent renewal term shall be the “Term” of this
Agreement. The term of each SOW shall be as specified in the applicable SOW.

4.2 Termination. Either party may, upon written notice to the other party, terminate this
Agreement for any reason or no reason, effective thirty (30) days from the date of such
notice. Additionally, either party may, upon written notice to the other party, terminate this
Agreement

in the event of material breach by the other party if such party has failed to cure such
material breach within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice of such material breach
from the non-breaching party. In the event that this Agreement or any SOW is terminated,
Customer

will pay Ardent Creative (a) any amounts owing for Services provided under the affected
SOW(s); and (b) any Expenses incurred by Ardent Creative up to and including the effective
date of termination; and (c) any amounts due or to become due under any non-cancelable
contract or commitment made pursuant to an SOW or with Customer’s written
authorization and still existing at the expiration or termination of this Agreement or any
SOW. Termination of a SOW shall not terminate this Agreement, and the parties shall
remain free to enter into future SOW(s) pursuant to this Agreement and during the term of
this Agreement. In the event this Agreement terminates prior to the completion of a SOW,
such SOW shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement until its
completion.

4.3 Survival. Sections 1-8 and 9.7 (non-solicitation) shall survive any termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

5. Confidentiality

Confidential Information. Both parties acknowledge that, in the course of performing this
Agreement, they may obtain information relating to products (such as goods, services, and
software) of the other party, or relating to the parties themselves, which is of a confidential
and proprietary nature (“Confidential Information”). Confidential Information includes all
communications concerning Ardent Creative’s or Customer's business and marketing
strategies including but not limited to employee and customer lists, customer profiles,
project plans, design documents, product strategies and pricing data, research, advertising
plans, leads and sources of supply, development activities, design and coding, interfaces
with Ardent Creative software, anything provided by Ardent Creative in connection with its
warranty obligations under this Agreement, including, without limitation, computer
programs, technical drawings, algorithms, know-how, formulas, processes, ideas,
inventions (whether patentable or not), schematics and other technical plans and other
information of the parties which by its nature can be reasonably expected to be proprietary

23



and confidential, whether it is presented in oral, printed, written, graphic or photographic
or other tangible form (including information received, stored or transmitted electronically)
and any other Ardent Creative or Customer Intellectual Property even though specific
designation as Confidential Information may not have been made.

Non-use and Non-disclosure. The parties shall at all times, both during the term of this
Agreement and thereafter keep in trust and confidence all Confidential Information of the
other party with the same degree of care as it uses with its own Confidential Information
(and in any event, applying no less than a reasonable degree of care) and shall not use such
Confidential Information other than as necessary to carry out its duties under this
Agreement, nor shall either party disclose any such Confidential Information to third

parties without the other party’s prior written consent.

Non-Applicability. The obligations of confidentiality shall not apply to information which (i)
has entered the public domain through no fault of the receiving party; (ii) prior to the
Effective Date was already in the receiving party’s possession without restriction; (iii)
subsequent to the Effective Date is obtained by the receiving party on a non-confidential
basis from a third party who has the right to disclose such information; or (iv) was
developed by the receiving party without use of or reference to the Confidential
Information.

Terms of this Agreement. Except as required by law or governmental regulation, neither
party shall disclose, advertise, or publish the terms and conditions of this Agreement
without the prior written consent of the other party, except that either party may disclose
the terms of this Agreement to accountants, attorneys and parent organizations pursuant
to the terms of a non-disclosure or confidentiality agreement. Disclosure Required by Law.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, each party may comply with an order
from a court or other governmental body of competent jurisdiction and disclose the other
party's Confidential Information in compliance with that order only if such party: (i) gives
the other party prior notice to such disclosure (unless prohibited by court order) if the time
between that order and such disclosure reasonably permits or, if time does not permit,
gives the other party notice of such disclosure promptly after complying with that order
and (ii) fully cooperates with the other party, at the other party’s cost and expense, in
seeking a protective order, confidential treatment, or taking other measures to oppose or
limit such disclosure. Each party must not release any more of the other party’s
Confidential Information than is reasonably necessary to comply with an applicable order.

Personal Data. For purposes of this Agreement, Personally Identifiable Information (or “PII”)
shall mean a special category of Confidential Information that can be used to identify,
contact, or locate an individual, including, but not limited to, Name, Address, Phone
number, Fax number, E-mail address, IP Address or Precise (Fine) GPS information
describing an individual's current location. Pll that has been “deidentified”, or no longer
identifiable to an individual and PIl that has been encrypted shall not be deemed PIl for

24



purposes of this Section. Pll exchanged between the parties shall be: (a) limited to only that
information necessary to execute the Services; (b) obtained, used, retained and destroyed
in accordance to applicable laws, rules, regulations and industry best standards, and in
accordance with all necessary individual privacy rights, consents and expressed
preferences; and (c) shall be secured against loss, compromise, unauthorized use,
disclosure or destruction through reasonable administrative, technical and physical
safeguards.

6. Warranties and Remedies

6.1 Services Warranty and Remedy. Each party warrants that it has full power and authority
to enter into this Agreement and that entering into or performing under this Agreement
will not violate any agreement it has with a third party. Ardent Creative warrants that
during the Term it will perform the Services in a workmanlike manner consistent with
generally accepted industry standards. In the event of a breach of the foregoing warranty,
Ardent Creative's sole obligation, and Customer’s exclusive remedy shall be, at Ardent
Creative's option to either reperform the applicable Services or provide a refund of fees
paid for the affected Services or affected portion thereof.

6.2 Warranty Disclaimer and Limitations. EXCEPT AS SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE
SERVICES ARE PROVIDED "AS IS" WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, AND Ardent Creative
MAKES NO WARRANTIES WHETHER EXPRESSED, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY REGARDING OR
RELATING TO THE DELIVERABLES, MATERIALS OR SERVICES FURNISHED OR PROVIDED TO
CUSTOMER UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED UNDER
APPLICABLE LAW, Ardent Creative SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY, OR OF FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND
NON-INFRINGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE DELIVERABLES AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY
Ardent Creative HEREUNDER, AND WITH RESPECT TO THE USE OF THE FOREGOING.

7. Indemnification

Each party (“Indemnitor”) shall defend and indemnify the Indemnitee and its employees,
Affiliates and subsidiaries from any third party claim(s) (each a “Claim”) alleging that the
Services or any Customer Content (as applicable) infringes any valid patent, copyright or
trademark; provided that Indemnitee (a) promptly ceases use of the applicable content and
gives Indemnitor written notice of the Claim; (b) gives Indemnitor sole control of the
defense and settlement of the Claim; and (c) provides to Indemnitor all reasonable
assistance, at Indemnitor’s expense. This Section 7 sets forth the parties’ sole and entire
liability and exclusive remedies for any infringement or misappropriation claims of any
kind. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Ardent Creative shall have no obligation to indemnify
Customer under clause (a) above with respect to any claim alleging that Customer’s actions
or use of the Services (in whole or in part, and whether directly, indirectly, or on or in
combination with systems, software or applications not supplied by Ardent Creative)

25



infringes or induces the infringement of a patent claim or copyright if such claim would
have been avoided if not for such actions or use of the Services by Customer.

8. Limitation of Liability

8.1 Disclaimer of Certain Damages. IN NO EVENT SHALL CUSTOMER OR Ardent Creative BE
LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF DATA,
COST OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES, OR FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF
THE PERFORMANCE OF OR FAILURE TO PERFORM THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER ALLEGED
AS A BREACH OF CONTRACT OR TORTIOUS CONDUCT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE, EVEN IF A
PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

8.2 Damages Cap. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY'S AGGREGATE, CUMULATIVE
LIABILITY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE AMOUNTS CUSTOMER PAID OR WAS
REQUIRED TO PAY Ardent Creative FOR THE PARTICULAR SERVICES GIVING RISE TO SUCH
LIABILITY UNDER THE APPLICABLE SOW TO THIS AGREEMENT AND IN NO EVENT IN AN
AMOUNT GREATER THAN THE AMOUNT CUSTOMER PAID TO Ardent Creative IN THE
TWELVE (12) MONTHS IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO LIABILITY. FOR
PURPOSES OF CALCULATING THE FOREGOING CAP, MEDIA PURCHASES SHALL BE
EXCLUDED. THE FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT LIMIT EITHER PARTY'S
INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATION SET FORTH IN SECTION 7.

9. Miscellaneous

9.1 Assignment. Neither party may assign or transfer its rights or obligations under this
Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer may assign this Agreement and its obligations
hereunder without Ardent Creative's consent to a corporation or other business entity
succeeding to all or substantially all of Customer’s assets and business by purchase,

merger or operation of law. Any assignment in violation of this Section 9.1 shall be void ab
initio and of no effect. Subject to the foregoing, this Agreement is binding upon, inures to
the benefit of and is enforceable by the parties and their respective successors and assigns.

9.2 Customer Identification. Customer consents to Ardent Creative's identification of
Customer as a user of the Services, as applicable, on its website, through a press release
issued by Ardent Creative and in other promotion materials. Customer also agrees to
cooperate with Ardent Creative in writing a case study exposing how the Services are being
used and the benefits the Customer is deriving from this use. In the event that the
Agreement between Ardent Create and Customer is terminated. Customer may request
that Ardent Creative remove any and all references to Customer on Ardent Creative's
website or other materials after the termination of the Agreement.

26



9.3 Force Majeure. Neither party will be liable for, or be considered to be in breach of or
default under this Agreement, other than monetary obligations, as a result of any cause or
condition (for example, natural disaster, act of war or terrorism, riot or governmental
action) beyond such party's reasonable control.

9.4 Governing Law. Entire Agreement; Governing Law, Severability. This Agreement
constitutes the complete agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior or
contemporaneous agreements or representations, written or oral, concerning the subject
matter of this Agreement. This Agreement is governed by the internal laws of the State of
Texas, excluding conflict of law rules. In the event that any provision of this Agreement
becomes or is held to be illegal by any court of competent jurisdiction, or becomes
otherwise unenforceable, such provision will be deemed deleted from this Agreement and
all the remaining terms of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

If any provision(s) hereof is held unenforceable, this Master Agreement will continue
without said provision and be interpreted to reflect the original intent of the parties.

The parties hereby irrevocably waive any and all claims and defenses either might
otherwise have in any such action or proceeding in any of such courts based upon any
alleged lack of personal jurisdiction, improper venue, forum non conveniens or any similar
claim or defense. A breach by either party of Section 5 would cause irreparable harm for
which the non-breaching party shall be entitled to seek injunctive relief.

9.5 Savings. If any provision of this Agreement, in whole or in part, is determined to be
illegal, unenforceable, or invalid, such provision shall be deleted from this Agreement and
shall not affect the legality, enforceability or validity of the remainder of this Agreement.
This Agreement shall be considered drafted mutually by the parties.

9.6 Notices. Any notice or other communication under this Agreement given by either party
to the other will be deemed to be properly given if given in writing and delivered in person
or facsimile, if acknowledged received by return facsimile or followed within one day by a
delivered or mailed copy of such notice, or if mailed, properly addressed and stamped with
the required postage, to the intended recipient at its address specified below the
signatures on this Agreement, or if sent via email, if receipt is acknowledged. Either party
may from time to time change its address for notices under this Section by giving the other
party notice of the change in accordance with this Section 9.6.

9.7 Non-solicitation. During the Agreement and for a period of twelve (12) months following

its expiry or earlier, lawful termination, neither party shall solicit or approach in any way
any of the other party’s employees or contract staff (“Restricted Persons”) with a view to: (i)
offering such Restricted Persons, employment; or (ii) soliciting services from them on their
own account; or (iii) encouraging them to provide their services to a third party; or (iv)
offering to them the opportunity to perform services colourably similar to the Services,

27



except pursuant to general solicitations of employment through the media that are not
directed specifically to any employees of either party. If either party breaches its
obligations set forth in this Section 9.7, the breaching party agrees to pay to the other party
in the form of compensation and not a penalty an amount equal to one third (1/3) of the
applicable Restricted Person’s annual compensation (whether actual, or annualized)
immediately prior to the date of such breach.

9.8 Non-waiver. Any failure of either party to insist upon or enforce performance by the
other party of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any rights or remedies
under this Agreement will not be interpreted or construed as a waiver or relinquishment of
such party's right to assert or rely upon such provision, right or remedy in that or any other
instance.

9.9 Independent Contractor. Each party is an independent contractor, and nothing
contained in this Agreement shall be construed to create or imply a joint venture, mandate,
partnership, principal-agent or employment relationship between the parties. No party
shall take any action or permit any action to be taken on its behalf which purports to be
done in the name of or on behalf of the other and neither shall have any power or
authority to bind the other party.

28



Aumentum Technologies, a Division of Manitron, Inc.
(EULA’s — Marshall & Swift and Moore’s Precision Data)
Approved by vote of Board 12/11/2020

29



3) Authorize payment of $825,000.00 to TCDRS for use in
reducing the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of TAD's
retirement plan.

f. Consider Adoption of Qualified Replacement Benefit Arrangement with
the Texas County and District Retirement System (starts at 1:30:49)

Mr. Martinez moved to approve staff recommendation below: Mr. DeOtte
seconded; and the motion passed unanimously.

Staff Recommendation:

Adopt a Qualified Replacement Benefit Arrangement under the
“Texas County and District Retirement System Qualified
Replacement Benefit Arrangement" program.

g. Consider End User License Agreements (EULA) for Marshall & Swift
Rate Tables and Moore’s Precision Rate Tables (starts at 1:31:57)

Mr. Martinez moved to approve staff recommendation below: Mr. DeOtte
seconded; and the motion passed unanimously.

Staff Recommendation:
Authorize TAD staff to execute End User License Agreements with
Manatron, Inc. for the use of Marshall & Swift and Moore's
Precision Data rate table data for a one-year term with the annual
license fee(s) not to exceed a combined total of $65,833.11.

h. Consider appointment of Taxpayer Liaison Officer (starts at 1 :32:50)

Mr. DeOtte moved to approve staff recommendation below; Mr. Martinez
seconded; and the motion passed unanimously.

Staff Recommendation:

Appoint Shirley Jacobson to the position of Taxpayer Liaison
Officer beginning January 1, 2021.

i. Consider options for committing unspent funds from 2020 Budget
(starts at 1:33:37)

Mr. DeOtte moved to approve staff recommendations below; Mr. Martinez
seconded; and the motion passed unanimously.

Staff Recommendations:

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 5
for December 11, 2020 30



Invoice No. MANMNO0000426
Date 172512021

Due Date 1/25/2021
Customer No. 4322101

Page 10of1

Bill To

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT

JEFF CRAIG DIR ADMIN/T SHELTON FIN OFFICER
2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD

FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

United States

¥

Aumenturm’

TECHNOLOGIES

Ship To

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT
2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD
FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

United States

Contract/Project Number Purchase Order Payment Terms Currency
Due Upon Receipt HARRIS-US$
Item No Description Quantity Unit Price Amount
PRECISION-S Moore's Precision Ratetable Annual Fee January 2021 to 1.00 56,635.60 56,635.60
December 2021
RATETABLE-S Marshall & Swift RateTable Data: January 2021 to 1.00 9,197.51 9,197.51
December 2021
Subtotal 65,833.11
Misc 0.00
Remit To: . Taxes 0.00
Aumentum Technologies, ]
a division of Manatron, Inc. Freight
PO Box 74008484 Total 65,833.11

Chicago, Il 60674-8484

\\ Invoice Questions? Please call or email Deb Loveridge at 866-471-2900 ext 77723 or
r , ar_aumentum@harriscomputer.com

{‘\%"

Thank you for your business!

\
9‘0 5 \‘1—0{7

QD#

2J3/2024
D)4 (583311

LS T —

o -

31



TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

2500 Handley Ederville Road
Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909
Direct Line 817.595.6007 Fax 817.595.6198

Vendor: Purchase Order No. 12023
Aumentum Technologies

a Division of Manatron, Inc. .

PO Box 74008484 ORDER DATE: 2/2/2021

Chicago, IL 60674-8484
TAX EXEMPTION NO. 1-75-1695033-8

Billing Address: Shipping Address:
Tarrant Appraisal District Attention :
Attn: Accounts Payable Tarrant Appraisal District
2500 Handley-Ederville Road 2500 Handley-Ederville Road
Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909 Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909
Shipping Method: FOB:
Item Description Unit |Quantity| Unit Price Total Date
Required
Marshall and Swift Rate Table per the attachments. Year 1 $9,198.51 $9,198.51
Moore Precision Rate Table per the attachments. Year 1 $56,635.60 $56,635.60
- \\\ Total Cost Not to Exceed: $65,834.11
This document is for/internal purposes only.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS:
The Tarrant Appraisal District reserves the right to cancel all or any part of this order if not shipped as required or instructed.
All goods and services shall be subject to Tarrant Appraisal District approval. Unsatisfactory goods will be returned at the vendor's expense.
No substitute will be accepted without prior written approval from the Tarrant Appraisal District Purchasing Division.
No federal, state or city tax shall be included when goods are delivered to the above address.
No responsibility will be assumed for verbal orders given by employees outside the Purchasing Department.
No additional charge will be allowed for packing, crating, boxing, and/or handling.
Cash discount period will date from the date of receipt of goods at delivery destination.
DELIVERY NOTE: Only deliver 8:15 A.M. til 4:30 P.M. - Monday through Friday (Except Holidays)
PURCHASIN! SIGNATURE: Contact Purchasing for questions regarding this purchase order.

( e _ Direct Line: 817.595.6007 Fax: 817.595.6198
\ y /

v~

32



/}( 4322101
Aumentunm’

TECHNOLOGIES

MANATRON, INC.
Approved Moore Precision™ Cost Tables Reseller

2021 AGREEMENT

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is between the End User shown below (“End User”) and Manatron,
Inc. ("Manatron”). The End User has been granted the right to use Moore Precision™ Cost Tables (the
“Tables”) in Manatron’s Aumentum and ProVal software and CAMA programs for a period of one (1)
calendar year. The End User agrees to pay the applicable license fee shown below for having the
Tables, or any derivative thereof, installed and available for the purpose of computing the estimated
replacement cost new (“RCN") of real property improvements. If the End User does not pay the
applicable fees, the End User agrees to cease using and erase, destroy or disable the Tables from being
accessed or used in the End User's computer environment. The End User's use of the Tables will be
governed by the EULA for the Tables attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. By signing below or using
the Tables, the End User agrees to be bound and abide by the terms of the EULA. The EULA is an
agreement between the End User and J. Wayne Moore, PhD, LLC. Manatron is not a party to the EULA.
I, the End User, have read and agree to all the terms listed above and in the EULA.

PLEASE FILL IN COMPLETELY
Fill in the number of parcels for calendar year 2021 (January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2021)

& ADMINSTZATION

End User's Name:

Signature:

Jurisdiction/Company: TAZRANT ARRASAL DISIRICT
Address: %0 HANDE y-BDER Wt RO
City: FoP1  wopt i

State: IE)(A’( Zip Code: 16"@

Total number of residential and agricultural property parcels on the most
recent assessment roll, including vacant/undeveloped land parcels, but
excluding oil/gas/mineral rights that are assigned parcel numbers in
addition to the related land parcels and personal property accounts that

have been assigned parcel numbers in the database: 6%, m

The fees for licensing the Tables are ten cents ($0.10) per parcel, with an annual minimum of three
hundred dollars ($300.00).

Pursuant to the above paragraph, the total license fee payable for
one (1) calendar year: $ 56, b%$ : bo
Please indicate if you would prefer to receive future communications via email: OYes #No 65833.11

If yes, please provide email address:

Please return this completed form to Manatron as soon as possible by emailing it to

Deb.Loveridge@Aumentumtech.com, faxing it to Deb Loveridge at (269) 585-6427 or mailing it to

Manatron, Inc. 510 East Milham, Portage, MI 49002.

33



y
Aumentum

TECHNOLOGIES

MANATRON, INC.
(“Manatron”)
Approved Marshall & Swift Reseller

2021 END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT (EULA)

The End User listed below has been granted the right to use the Marshall & Swift Cost Data in Reseller's
CAMA Program for a period of one (1) calendar year. The End User agrees to pay the appropriate fees
for the use of the data each year the End User uses the M&S Cost Data in the Reselier's CAMA Program.
if the End User listed below does not pay the appropriate fees, the End User agrees to cease using and
to erase, destroy, or disable the M&S Data in the CAMA Program, and that Reseller may erase, destroy,
or disable all M&S Cost Data found in the CAMA Program.

|, the End User, have read and agree to all the terms listed above.

PLEASE FILL IN COMPLETELY
Fill in the number of parcels for calendar year 2021 (January 1, 2021 — December 31, 2021)

End User's Name: \| -

Signature:

\®
Jurisdiction/Company: __TARCANT A(PRAKHL OISTRICT

Address: 500 “M—'—W )
City: Porly  wweetid,

State: ‘m)'ks Zip Code: M

License Fees
Improved Commercial/industrial Parcels: wn'za $0.318/parcel (square feet)
Improved Agricultural Parcels: N /A $0.251/parcel (square feet)

Total Number of All Parcels (improved and unimproved): 2@ 43’ (" qt a1 L] r . )

Please indicate if you would prefer to receive future communications via email: OYes ®@No
{f yes, please provide email address:
Please retun this completed form to Manatron as soon as possible by emailing it to

Deb.Loveridge@AumentumTech.com, faxing it to Deb Loveridge at (269) 567-2930, or mailing it to
Manatron, Inc, 510 East Milham, Portage, Mi 45002.

34



Invoice No. MANMN(0000426
Date 1/25/2021

Due Date 1/25/2021
Customer No. 4322101

Page 10f1

Bill To

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT

JEFF CRAIG DIR ADMIN/T SHELTON FIN OFFICER
2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD

FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

2

Aumentuam’

TECHNOLOGIES

Ship To

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT

2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD
FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

United States

United States
Contract/Project Number Purchase Order Payment Terms Currency
Due Upon Receipt HARRIS-US$
ltem No Description Quantity Unit Price Amount
PRECISION-S Moore's Precision Ratetable Annual Fee: January 2021 to 1.00 56,635.60 56,635.60
December 2021
RATETABLE-S Marshall & Swift RateTable Data: January 2021 to 1.00 9,197.51 9,197 .51
December 2021
Subtotal 65,833.11
Misc 0.00
Remit To: . Taxes 0.00
Aumentum Technologies, )
a division of Manatron, Inc. Freight 0.00
PO Box 74008484 Total 65,833.11

Chicago, 11 60674-8484

ar_aumentum@harriscomputer.com

Thank you for your business!

Invoice Questions? Please call or email Deb Loveridge at 866-471-2900 ext. 77723 or

35



Aumentum’

TECHNOLOGIES

MANATRON, INC.
(“Manatron”)
Approved Marshall & Swift Reseller

2021 END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT (EULA)

The End User listed below has been granted the right to use the Marshall & Swift Cost Data in Reseller's
CAMA Program for a period of one (1) calendar year. The End User agrees to pay the appropriate fees
for the use of the data each year the End User uses the M&S Cost Data in the Reseller's CAMA Program.
If the End User listed below does not pay the appropriate fees, the End User agrees to cease using and
to erase, destroy, or disable the M&S Data in the CAMA Program, and that Reseller may erase, destroy,
or disable all M&S Cost Data found in the CAMA Program.

I, the End User, have read and agree to all the terms listed above.

PLEASE FILL IN COMPLETELY
Fill in the number of parcels for calendar year 2021 (January 1, 2021 — December 31, 2021)

End User's Name: J - D\Recio-. ot APMINISTRATISN

Signature:

=
Jurisdiction/Company: __ TARRANT ACPRAK AL PISTRICT

Address: 1%0 "‘Mﬂé{—_’/&.&lﬂé o
City: Fﬂi{ W

State: RS Zip Code: _T6118

License Fees
Improved Commercial/lndustrial Parcels: ze|fzs $0.318/parcel (square feet)
Improved Agricultural Parcels: N /Ag $0.251/parcel (square feet)

Total Number of All Parcels (improved and unimproved): 28'4 Zi (“ qo 147 v 5l )

Please indicate if you would prefer to receive future communications via email: [Yes ®@No

{f yes, please provide email address:

Please return this completed form to Manatron as soon as possible by emailing it to
Deb.Loveridge@AumentumTech.com, faxing it to Deb Loveridge at (269) 567-2930, or mailing it to
Manatron, Inc, 510 East Milham, Portage, Mi 49002.

36



Aumentum’

TECHNOLOGIES

November 5, 2020

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT

JEFF CRAIG DIR ADMIN/T SHELTON FIN OFFICER
2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD

FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

Dear Customer:

Manatron, Inc. (*Aumentum Technologies” or “Aumentum Tech”) continues to partner with Marshall &
Swift (“M&S”) to provide our customers with the M&S tables at discounted rates, which include the license
fee to integrate M&S tables into our software.

The 2021 M&S End User License Agreement (“EULA") is enclosed. This EULA must be filled out
completely and returned to Aumentum Tech. Aumentum Tech will then forward it to M&S as part of our
agreement with M&S. Even if you are not using the M&S tables, you must report zero parcel counts.

M&S requires that each year Aumentum Tech have users report their specific parcel counts and pay the
appropriate annual royalty fee. If Aumentum Tech does not receive your completed M&S EULA, you
will not be authorized to utilize M&S tables in 2021.

The following M&S rates apply for 2021:

PARCEL TYPE SQUARE FOOT RATE PER PARCEL
Improved Commercial/Industrial $0.318
Improved Agricultural $0.251

Thank you for your diligence in returning the 2021 EULA to Deb Loveridge via email at
Deb.Loveridge@AumentumTech.com, by fax to 269.585.6427 or by mail at the address below. You will
receive an invoice for the 2021 fees soon after. Again, thank you for your immediate attention to this
matter. If you have any questions, please contact Deb Loveridge at 866.471.2900. EXT 77723

Sincerely,

Scot Crismon
Executive Vice President

510 East Milham Avenue Phone 866.471.2900
Portage, Mi 49002 Fax 269.585.64."\2%77



M
Aumentunm’

TECHNOLOGIES

MANATRON, INC.
Approved Moore Precision™ Cost Tables Reseller

2021 AGREEMENT

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is between the End User shown below (“End User”) and Manatron,
Inc. (“Manatron”). The End User has been granted the right to use Moore Precision™ Cost Tables (the
“Tables”) in Manatron’s Aumentum and ProVal software and CAMA programs for a period of one (1)
calendar year. The End User agrees to pay the applicable license fee shown below for having the
Tables, or any derivative thereof, installed and available for the purpose of computing the estimated
replacement cost new (“RCN") of real property improvements. If the End User does not pay the
applicable fees, the End User agrees to cease using and erase, destroy or disable the Tables from being
accessed or used in the End User's computer environment. The End User's use of the Tables will be
governed by the EULA for the Tables attached to this Agreement as Exhibit A. By signing below or using
the Tables, the End User agrees to be bound and abide by the terms of the EULA. The EULA is an
agreement between the End User and J. Wayne Moore, PhD, LLC. Manatron is not a party to the EULA.
I, the End User, have read and agree to all the terms listed above and in the EULA.

PLEASE FILL IN COMPLETELY
Fill in the number of parcels for calendar year 2021 (January 1, 2021 — December 31, 2021)

End User's Name: \& - DIRECTLR o€ ApmiNSTZATION
’

Signature:
—

Jurisdiction/Company: TARGANT AfRASAL DI T

Address: D HANDEY -BOERVILE R

City: &E! l&bﬂ-‘“‘l’

State: TEXAS Zip Code: 16"3

Total number of residential and agricultural property parcels on the most

recent assessment roll, including vacant/undeveloped land parcels, but

excluding oil/gas/mineral rights that are assigned parcel numbers in

addition to the related land parcels and personal property accounts that w
have been assigned parcel numbers in the database: 6 i%

The fees for licensing the Tables are ten cents ($0.10) per parcel, with an annual minimum of three
hundred dollars ($300.00).

Pursuant to the above paragraph, the total license fee payable for
one (1) calendar year: $ 56" b’;. bD
Please indicate if you would prefer to receive future communications via emait: OYes #No

If yes, please provide email address:

Please return this completed form to Manatron as scon as possible by emailing it to
Deb Loveridge@Aumentumtech.com, faxing it to Deb Loveridge at (269) 585-6427 or mailing it to
Manatron, Inc. 510 East Milham, Portage, Ml 49002.

38



EXHIBIT A

END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT (“EULA”) FOR MOORE PRECISION™ COST TABLES

This End User License Agreement ("EULA") is between End User and J. Wayne Moore, PhD, LLC
("Moore”) This EULA governs End User's use of Moore Precision™ Cost Tables used in Reseller's
Aumentum and ProVal software and computer-assisted mass appraisal systems (collectively
“CAMA’), including the design of the cost model embodied therein, and any associated media,
printed or electronic materials, documentation, updates, or add-ons (collectively “Tables”) provided by
Reseller through operation of its CAMA.

Upon payment in full for the license(s) to the Tables pursuant to the Agreement, End User will be
granted a non-exclusive, terminable license to use the Tables (including the Craftsman Book
Company published construction unit and assembly costs for the designated year as they are
embedded and configured in the Tables) that accompany this EULA. Use of the Tables is limited to
internal business use (“IBU") for users connected to the single server for which use has been
granted. I1BU shall mean use of the Tables for End User's customary internal business purposes and,
except as may otherwise be permitted herein, shall not mean the commercial distribution or use of
the Tables or any component thereof in any commercial product (‘CP") whatsoever.

For purposes of this EULA, CP shall mean an electronic document containing an embedded copy of
the Tables created by use of the Tables, which is offered for distribution to other CAMA software
users (or to some subset thereof) as a commercial product in exchange for a separate fee or other
consideration.

Moore or its licensors retain all right and title in and to the Tables, together with the design of the cost
model embodied therein and any trademarks used in connection therewith. Craftsman Book
Company, or its successors and assigns, retain all right, title, and interest in and to the published
construction unit and assembly costs. Except as may be otherwise expressly permitted herein, End
User agrees not to copy the Tables or create derivative works based upon the design of the cost
model or the Tables, or to provide the Tables to any third party without Moore’s prior written consent,
which consent Moore may withhold in his sole discretion. All rights not expressly granted herein are
reserved to Moore or its licensors  Moore’s rights and remedies in the event of an infringement shall be
cumulative in nature

End User may install and use the Tables on a single-file server for use on a single local area network
("LAN") only and limited to the number of authorized users (if any) set forth in the Agreement End
User will be responsible for any users it permits to use the Tables

End User may not alter the Tables in any manner whatsoever, except as permitted through operation
of the CAMA. Reformatting the Tables into other formats or for use in other operating systems is
expressly prohibited The Tables may not be used to create or distribute any electronic document in
which the Tables, or any part thereof, are embedded in a format that permits editing, alterations,
enhancements or modifications by the recipient of such document. End User hereby agrees not to
transmit any electronic document to any party that intends to “hack,” edit, alter, enhance or otherwise
modify or remove the Tables from any document

End User may make one (1) back-up copy of the Tables for archival purposes only, and End User
agrees to retain exclusive custody and control over any such copy. Any copies that End User is
expressly permitted to make pursuant to the Agreement must contain the same copyright, trademark
and other proprietary notices that appear on or in the Tables Upon expiration or termination of the
Agreement, End User must destroy the original and any and all copies of the Tables in its possession,
custody or control.

39



Aumentum

TECHNOLOGIES

November 5, 2020

Dear Customer:

Manatron, Inc. (“Aumentum Technologies” or “Aumentum Tech”) continues to partner with Moore
Precision to provide our customers with the Cost Data required of Tarrant County.

The 2021 Moore Precision cost tables EULA is also enclosed. If you choose to use Moore Precision, this
EULA must be filled out and returned to Aumentum Tech. Aumentum Tech will then forward it to Moore
Precision as part of our agreement with them. If Aumentum Tech does not receive your completed
Moore Precision EULA, you will not be authorized to utilize Moore Precision cost tables in 2021.

The following Moore Precision rates apply for 2021:

PARCEL TYPE RATE PER PARCEL

Residential and Agricultural $0.10 (minimum fee of $300.00)

Thank you for your diligence in returning the 2021 EULA(s) to Deb Loveridge via email at
Deb.Loveridge@AumentumTech.com, by fax to 269.585.6427 or by mail at the address below. You will
receive an invoice for the 2021 fees soon after.

Again, thank you for your immediate attention to this matter. If you have any questions, please contact
Deb Loveridge at 866.471.2900.

Sincerely,

Scot Crismon
Executive Vice President

510 East Milham Avenue Phone 866.471.2900
Portage, Ml 49002 Fax 269.585.6427
40



The design of the cost model, the Tables and any trademarks associated therewith are the exclusive
property of Moore or its flicensors, and are protected by the copyright and other inteliectual property
laws of the United States and its various states, by the copyright and design laws of other nations,
and by other international treaties.

Where permitted through the normal operation of the CAMA, End User is permitted to modify the
Tables solely for End Users IBU. Any such modified Tables are subject to all the restrictions and
limitations of this EULA and may not be distributed or used in a manner contrary to the terms of
this EULA. Under no circumstances will Moore or its licensors, inciuding Craftsman Bock Company,
be responsible for the performance, maintenance or support of any modified Tables. End User must
not modify, adapt, translate, reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, alter or otherwise attempt to
discover the source code of the Tables, except as may otherwise be permitted by law without the
possibility of waiver. Except as may be otherwise expressiy provided for in this EULA, End User
agrees not to rent, lease, sublicense, give, lend or further distribute the Tables.

Moore warrants that the Tables will perform substantially in accordance with their documentation
during the annual license period of the Tables. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS
EULA, MOORE AND ITS LICENSORS HEREBY DISCLAIM ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS
AND IMPLIED, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. MOORE DOES NOT
WARRANT THAT THE OPERATION OF THE TABLES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR-
FREE, OR THAT THE TABLES ARE WITHOUT DEFECTS. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES
SHALL MOORE OR ITS LICENSORS BE LIABLE TO END USER OR ANY OTHER PARTY,
WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE) OR OTHERWISE, FOR ANY
SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING LOST PROFITS OR
REVENUE, LOST SAVINGS OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION AS A RESULT OF THE USE OF
THE TABLES, EVEN IF NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OF SUCH POSSIBILITY. End User hereby
agrees that its entire, exclusive and cumulative liability and remedy shall be limited to the annual
license fees for the Tables. Under no circumstances shall Moore’s or its licensors' liability exceed
either the license fees for the Tables or replacement of the Tables, either of which shall be at Moore's
sole discretion.

This EULA shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without regard to its conflict of
laws principles. End User expressly submits to the jurisdiction of the state and federal courts in
the State of New York. The application of the United Nations Convention of Contracts for the
International Sale of Goods is expressly excluded.

This EULA is the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement between Moore and End User,
which supersedes any proposal or prior agreement, oral or written, and any other communications
relating to the subject matter hereof. If any provision of this EULA is declared by a court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this EULA shall
continue in full force and effect. Each party will comply with all applicable federal, state and local
laws applicable to it in the performance of its obligations under this EULA

Moore may terminate this EULA or End User's license in the event End User materially breaches this

EULA or the license and fails to cure such breach within fifteen (15) days of receiving written notice of the
breach.

41



Aumentum Technologies, a Division of Manitron, Inc.
(Maintenance and escrow for CAMA system)
Approved by vote of Board 01/15/2021

42



Mr. Martinez moved to elect Ms. Wilemon as Chairman; Mr. Losada offered
amendment to the motion; Mr. Martinez accepted the amendment; Mr. Losada
seconded the amended motion to elect Ms. Wilemon as Chairman and Mr. DeOtte
as Secretary for the 2021 calendar year; and the motion carried unanimously.

6. Discussion Item (starts at 54:10)

Review of protests of property tax appraisals in Tarrant County as compared to
other major metropolitan counties and related issues

7. Action Items
a. Consider and Act on Consent Agenda Items (starts at 2:00:25)

Mr. Losada moved to approve all five items under Action Item 7(a); Mr.
Martinez seconded; motion carried unanimously.

(1)  Consider Approval of Minutes of December 11, 2020 Meeting

The minutes approved are set out in full in the Agenda Packet for the
January 15, 2021 meeting.

{(2) Consider Approval of Payment for Annual Maintenance and
Support Services provided by Manatron, Inc. and Payment of
Annual Escrow Fee

Staff Recommendation approved:

Authorize payment to Manatron for invoice in total amount of
$295,297.00 for annual maintenance fees (a/k/a “Software
Support Services Fees”) in the amount of $292,672.00 and
annual escrow fee in the amount of $2,625.00.

(3) Consider Authorizing Negotiation of Professional Services
Agreement for TAD.org Maintenance, Support, and
Development for 2021

Staff recommendation approved:

Authorize staff to negotiate professional services agreement
with Ardent Creative, Inc. for continued maintenance, support,
and development of TAD.org functionality in 2021 and in an
amount not to exceed $100,000.

(4) Consider Authorizing Annual Renewal of Software Maintenance
Licenses for All ESRI Software Products in Support of the

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 5
for January 15, 2021

43



Invoice No.
Date

Due Date
Customer No.
Page

Bill To

MANMNO0000311
1/8/2021
1/8/2021
4322101

10f1

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT

JEFF CRAIG DIR ADMIN/T SHELTON FIN OFFICER
2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD
FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

United States

I
Al_llile}’ltunl'"

TECHNOLOGIES

Ship To

TARRANT COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT
2500 HANDLEY-EDERVILLE RD

FORT WORTH, TX 76118-6909

United States

Contract/Project Number Purchase Order Payment Terms Currency
JAN-DEC21 Due Upon Receipt HARRIS-US$

item No Description Quantity Unit Price Amount

AUMAA-S Aumentum Assmt Admin Spt. January 2021 to December 1.00 87,482.00 87,482.00
2021

AUMCM-S Aumentum Case Mgmt Support: January 2021 to 1.00 43,742.00 43,742.00
December 2021

AUMPP-S Aumentum Personal Prop Admin Sys Spt: January 2021 to 1.00 8,354.00 8,354.00
December 2021

AUMRECEE-S Aumentum Records Admin Enterprise Spt. January 2021 to 1.00 43,742.00 43,742.00
December 2021

AUMVAL-S Aumentum Valuation System Spt: January 2021 to 1.00 109,352.00 109,352.00
December 2021

ESCROW-S Annual Escrow Fee: January 2021 to December 2021 1.00 2,625.00 2,625.00

AUMLEVY-S Aumentum Levy Mgmt Support *Included*; January 2021 to 1.00 0.00 0.00
December 2021

AUMMOBILE-S Aumentum Mobile System Spt *Included*: January 2021 to 1.00 0.00 0.00
December 2021

Subtotal 295,297.00
Misc 0.00

Remit To: X Taxes 0.00

Aumentum Technologies, )

a division of Manatron, inc. ,}/\ Freight 0.00

PO Box 74008484 Total 295207.00 *

Chicago, 11 60674-8484

=V
42

Invoice Questions? Please call or email Deb Loveridge at +1-269-388-2583 or

Deb.Loveridge@AumentumTech.com

Thank you for your business!

2)3 favz).

4070/10 2352977

id

- s

)

i o

/

44



TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

2500 Handley Ederville Road
Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909
Direct Line 817.595.6007 Fax 817.595.6198

Vendor: Purchase Order No. 12019
Manatron, Inc.
PO Box 71275 ORDER DATE: 1/22/2021

Chicago, IL 60694-1275

b

TAX EXEMPTION NO. 1-75-1695033-8

Billing Address: Shipping Address:
Tarrant Appraisal District Attention :
Attn: Accounts Payable Tarrant Appraisal District
2500 Handley-Ederville Road 2500 Handley-Ederville Road
Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909 Fort Worth, TX 76118-6909
Shipping Method: FOB:
Item Description Unit |Quantity| Unit Price Total Date
Required
Annual Escrow Fee for 2021 per OR 14906. Year 1  $2,625.00 $2,625.00
Aumentum Maint for 2021. Covered under previous agreement. Year 1 $292,672.00 $292,672.00
/ 'Téfai\gost Not to Exceed: $295,297.00

£
ITHIS IS NOT AVALID PO AND IS FOR INTERNAL PURPOSES ONLY. ﬁne escrow was an added item and that is why |
have an OR just for the escrow.

."‘

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

The Tarrant Appraisal District reserves the right to cancel all or any part of this order if not shipped as required or instructed.

All goods and services shall be subject to Tarrant Appraisal District approval. Unsatisfactory goods will be returned at the vendor's expense.
No substitute will be accepted without prior written approval from the Tarrant Appraisal District Purchasing Division.

No federal, state or city tax shall be included when goods are delivered to the above address.

No responsibility will be assumed for verbal orders given by employees outside the Purchasing Department.

No additional charge will be allowed for packing, crating, boxing, and/or handling.

Cash discount period will date from the date of receipt of goods at delivery destination.

DELIVERY NOTE: Only deliver 8:15 A.M. til 4:30 P.M. - Monday through Friday (Except Holidays)

G AGENT SIGNATURE: Contact Purchasing for questions regarding this purchase order.
A Direct Line: 817.595.6007 Fax: 817.595.6198

45



TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

OUTSIDE REQUISITION 14908
REQ.No._~+-UD
AOmMIN /TS [~21~20.2/
DEPARTMENT | DATE
Yoo,/ 4570
DEPT. # / ACCOUNT LINE # BUDGET PAGE #
DESCRIPTION QrY. | UNIT ggg EXTENSION
ANNVAL ESUL FEE LITH / | en W /ﬁo
LR munTAL N 2,625 | 2 40T
REQLyBiTlf)NED By DATE REQUIRED
4 / EXPLANATORY REMARKS/JUSTIFICATION

i
DEPARTMEW
BUDGET APPROVAL = AUMENTY P ppp/ V¥

EX E AP ( ES iy FEE

sucésBdf SUPPLIER / /OL ~E

VENDOR NAME

JNANAET N
ADDRESS DATE ORDERED
CITY/ST/ZIP
INITIALS
PHONE

46




SCHEDULES FOR MASTER AGREEMENT FOR LICENSED
SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, AND SERVICES

The attached Schedules numbered TX2010.014.02 are made and entered into pursuant to, and subject to the terms and
conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services No. TX2010.014 between

TRTA Gov and the undersigned Customer (the “Agreement”).

By and Between

And

MANATRON, INC. - A THOMSON REUTERS BUSINESS
510 E. Milham Avenue

Portage, Michigan 49002
(“Thomson Reuters Tax & Accounting, Government”
or “TRTA Gov”)

TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
2500 Handley-Ederville Road

Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6909
(“Customer’)

Attention: Matthew Henry, Lead Contract Administrator
Telephone No.. (269) 388-2633
Fax No.: (269) 567-2930

E-maif Address: Matt.Henv@TR.com

Attention: Mr. Jeff Craig — Director of Administration
Telephone No.: 817.595.6002
Fax No.: 817.595.6198

E-mail Address: jcraig@tad.org

The parties have executed these Schedules as of the dates set forth below their respective signatures.

TRTA Gov TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
/7 st
By: / 7 /'f fote 7L % By: %
/ (Signature) =7 (W
inigteste? € ADMNNSTRATIGN
its: its: DiREctoR ©
(Title) (Title)
Date: _Qctober 27, 2017 Date: —m# ”?’
Witn d: By:
(Signature) (Signature)
By: its:
(Printed or Typed Name) (Title)
Date:
By:
(Signature)
Its:
(Title)
Date:
Witr d:
(Signature)
Date:
SIGNATURE PAGE

Date: October 12, 2017, J.R.

© Manatron, Inc. 2014

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

a7



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SCHEDULE FOR TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
Schedule No. TX2010.014.02 to the Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services. This Schedule is made and entered
into pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services
No. TX2010.014 between TRTA Gov and the undersigned Customer (the "Agreement").

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
Days/ Estimated
General Description of Services Quantity Unit Price One-Time Fees Annual Fees | Completion Date

SOURCE CODE ESCROW - Standard Three Party Escrow
Services with Iron Mountain including Agreement Setup and
longoing Annual Fees for the following products, generally
referred to as "Aumentum Valuation™:

Aumentum Valuation

Aumentum Records Enterprise

Aumentum Assessment Administration

lAumentum Case Management

Aumentum Levy Management 1 $ 2,500.00 | $ 1,500.00| $ 2,500.00 TBD

Total Professional Services Fees: $ 1,500.00 | $ 2,500.00

TRTA Gov agrees to update the Source Code Escrow Deposit four (4) times per year in association with this agreement. All other Terms and Conditions
not listed herein and iated with S Code Escrow shall be governed by the Terms and Conditions contained in the applicable Three Party Escrow
t bety Manatron and Iron Mountain.

One Time an ual, P;olesannal em;g Fees be invoiced mmally fq_llowmg the s let initial 1Sc Source (_:ode Elcrow degosut a‘ssogaated yvugh this
account! | E‘aﬁ"m 4“ ; sﬂuﬂ.j"ﬁba‘l‘dﬂe payal hi&vﬁn '6!" i‘ogunlﬁ whpet annu: M

PROFESSIONAL AND CONSULTATION/TRAINING SERVICES PAYMENT TERMS: Professional and Consuitation/Training Services fees are due and payable
after TRTA Gov performs such services in accordance with TRTA Gov’s invoice(s) that shall be sent to the Customer. Customer is responsible for all travel-related
expenses associated with TRTA Gov's Professional and Consultation/Training Services.

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL AND CONSULTATION/TRAINING SERVICES PAYMENT TERMS: TRTA Gov shall provide Professional and Consultation/T: raining
Services to Customer in the amounts identified above. Any additional Professional or Consultation/Training days requested by Customer shall be billed as used at
the rate in effect at the time of service. Customer is responsible for all travel-related expenses associated with TRTA Gov's additional Professional and

Consultation/Training Services.

GENERAL PROVISIONS:

(1) Customer shail provide a suitable room or space where training can be conducted in an uninterrupted manner;

(2) All Customer personnel to be trained should have adequate job coverage to ensure uninterrupted training sessions;

(3) Up to six hours of training are included in a “full day" of training;

(4) Customer acknowledges the importance of receiving the training provided herein and shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to ensure that said training is

fully completed;
(5) TRTA Gov recommends one (1) person per PC / terminal; and

Date: October 12, 2017, J.R.

} THOMSON REUTERS
© Manatron, Inc. 2014 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

48



SUMMARY SCHEDULE FOR TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

Schedule No. TX2010.014.02 to the Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services. This Schedule is made and entered
into pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services
No. TX2010.014 between TRTA Gov and the undersigned Customer (the "Agreement").

Description Price
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (billed as used) $ 1,500.00
Total One-Time Fees - Plus Freight: $ 1,500.00

Payment Terms for One-Time Fees: TRTA Gov will invoice 100% of the Hardware Fees and Third-Party Software Fees upon receipt of such items by Customer.
TRTA Gov shall invoice in accordance with the mutually agreed upon billing milestones. Professional Services Fees are due and payable after TRTA Gov performs
such services in accordance with TRTA Gov's invoice(s) that shall be sent to the Customer.

Taxes: The fees set forth in this Agreement do not indude any amounts for taxes. Unless Customer provides TRTA Gov with proof of exemption therefrom, Customer
shall pay all applicable taxes levied by any tax authority based upon this Agreement, the Software, Hardware, and/or any Professional Services performed by TRTA
Gov, excluding any taxes based upon TRTA Gov's income. It shall be Customer's sole obligation to challenge the applicability of any tax. If Customer shall become
subject to tax at any time following the execution of this Agreement, TRTA Gov shall have the right to assess the tax liability applicable under this Agreement to

Customer, and Customer agrees to pay TRTA Gov for such tax liability within thirty (30) days of receiving written notice of such tax liability from TRTA Gov.

Description Annual Price

ANNUAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FEES

2,500.00

Total Ongoing Fees:

2,500.00

Payment Terms for Ongoing Fees: Ongeing Annual Professional Service Fees are due and payable in advance of each annual term and are subject to annual

increases.

Date: October 12, 2017, J.R.

© Manatron, Inc. 2014

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

THOMSON REUTERS

49



Greg Garza

From: Jeff Craig

Sent: Monday, January 11, 2021 7:58 AM

To: Terrisa Stewart; Greg Garza

Subject: FW: Invoice amendment - TAD

Attachments: Tarrant Revised Annual Support Invoice.PDF; Tarrant Appraisal District
TX2010.014.02.pdf

Please see the amended invoice for the annual maintenance and the escrow account for 2021. Delete any earlier
versions.

This will be on the agenda Friday.

From: Renee Fuller [mailto:Renee.Fuller@AumentumTech.com]
Sent: Friday, January 08, 2021 12:51 PM

To: Jeff Craig

Subject: Invoice amendment - TAD

CAUTION This email originated from outsude of TAD. If it contains attachments and / or embedded links, please
do not open them unless you (1) recognize the sender and (2) are certain that the content is safe. For asslstance
determining if an attachment or link is safe, please contact Tech Support before opening.

Hi Jeff,

Please find attached TAD revised annual support invoice, | apologize for the oversight on your agreed upon support
pricing. The revision is $292,672 plus $2,625.00

| have attached the Escrow agreement which notes that annual escrow can be increased.

Please let me know if you have any further questions.

Thank you,
Renee
Renee Fuller
/}Q Sr Accounting Clerk
Aumea m un Phone: O 866.471.2900 x77737

SECHNOLOOE
Email: Renee.Fuller@ AumentumTech.com

www.aumentumtech.com |

50



From: Jeff Craig <JCraig@TAD.org>

Sent: Tuesday, January 5, 2021 12:58 PM

To: Deb Loveridge <Deb.Loveridge@AumentumTech.com>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Invoice amendment - TAD
Importance: High

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Deb,

I am placing payment of this item on the agenda for our Board of Directors on Friday January 15. However, in looking at
the invoice, | cannot get the number to match the contract. We should be in year #7 of the agreement. Last year, we
were invoice and paid year 6.

The amount for maintenance should be $292, 672 (chart below) and not $301,280 as indicated on the invoice.

We have been paying $2,500 for the escrow fee in past years. | am assuming that increased to $2,625? | can’t find
anything else regarding the escrow fee.

Can you confirm and send an amended invoice?

Thanks!

]eff Grm'g

Jeff Craig
Director of Administration

rl‘\

Tarrang Apprasayf Déstract
2500 Handley-Ederville Rd.
Fort Worth, Texas 76118
817-595-6002 direct
817-595-6198 fax
jcraig@tad.org

51



WO
ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT FEES
Original Adjusted Annual
Software Product Annual Price Price

GRM Records, Enterprise Edition 1

GRM Real Property (CAMA) e ,:__ —

GRM Personal Property . sme S o - =
| GRM Assessment Administration

GRM Appeais Management

(includes ARB funcfionality & iSettle)

Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: $259,885.00

Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #1 $259,885 $259,885
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #2 $267,682 $265,082
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #3 $275,712 $270,384
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #4 $283,983 $275,792
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #5 $292,503 $281,307
Adjusted Total Annua! Software Support Services Fees: Year #6 $301,278 $286,934
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #7 $310,316 $292,672
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #8 $319,626 $298,526
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #9 $329,215 $304,496
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #10 $339,091 $310,586




Amendment #1 to Agreement TX2010.014

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the Tarrant Appraisal District in Tarrant County, TX (the
“District”) and Manatron, Inc. a subsidiary of Thomson Reuters (“Thomson Reuters”).

WHEREAS, the parties have previously entered into a contract #TX2010.014 dated February 18, 2011
for the purchase of the Thomson Reuters GRM CAMA valuation software system (also known as Aumentum);
and

WHEREAS, the District and Thomson Reuters now wish to amend and clarify certain provisions of the
Agreement to account for changes to the schedule of delivery for the project which have arisen during the
period of performance for Agreement #TX 2010.014;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to
modify the Agreement and clarify the timing of certain payment and project activities within the Agreement
dated February 18, 2011 as follows:

As consideration for the adjustment to the project schedule that has been agreed to by the District,
Thomson Reuters hereby agrees to provide consideration to the District for costs it is incurring as a result
of the schedule adjustment. For the period between January 1, 2014 and the Go Live date, currently
scheduled for October 7, 2014, the District will make no further payments including those for change
requests, for products or services, to Thomson Reuters until the Go Live date and shall after the Go Live
date pay all payments scheduled prior to the Go Live date according to the schedule of payments
contained in Exhibit A of this amendment. Further, Thomson Reuters hereby agrees to refund the
amount of $793,936 to the District no later than June 15, 2014. The attached Maintenance and Support
Fees shall apply to the software that is the subject of this contract, any modifications of the software that
was originally included as the subject of this contract, and to any next generation property tax
administrative and appraisal software that Thomson Reuters would provide to replace the software that is
the subject of this contract.

The project is currently scheduled to go-live into production usage of the software on October 7, 2014 for
which the parties have mutually agreed upon the major functionality to be included in the Go-Live release
and for which acceptance cannot be unreasonably withheld. Should Thomson Reuters fail to meet the
October 7, 2014 Go-Live release date due to failures by Thomson Reuters and not due to delays by the
District, penalties as outlined in Exhibit A below shall apply.

This Amendment shall not alter any other terms or conditions of Agreement #TX 2010.014. Neither party
waives any rights or remedies it may have under said Agreement, except for those which may be directly
amended herein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District and Thomson Reuters, Inc. have each caused this Contract to be signed
and delivered by its duly authorized representative as of the date listed below.

Manatron, Inc. Tarrant Appraisal

istrict
By<ﬁ. 2 ZZ'Z' 2:= By: :.«M _
SVP Managing Director, Government Chief Appraisért”

Date: ‘_/{ 23- /'-_)[ Date! ‘//g "/ 2014

Tarrant Appraisal District - Tarrant County, TX — Amendment #1 to Agreement # TX 2010.014 Page 1 T.W.

53



EXHIBIT A
Revised Payment Schedule for Remaining Project Milestones

Pursuant to Paragraph | above, the following are the revised performance milestone billings for the project
under this Amendment.

APPLICATION SOFTWARE LICENSE FEES & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Total Application Software License Fees $1,155,044
Paid Application Software License Fees $462,017.60
Total Remaining Software License Fees $693,026.40
Total Professional Services Fees $787,303.00
Paid Professional Services Fees $271,619.54
Total Remaining Professional Service Fees $515,683.46
TOTAL REMAINING ONE-TIME FEES $1,208,709.86

The parties agree that the remaining One-Time Application Software License Fees and Professional Services
Fees will be invoiced in monthly payments commencing on the first of the month next following Go-Live and as
listed below. The amounts listed in the table below are based upon the total amount in the schedule above
and would be adjusted equally for any additional change request incorporated prior to go-live. If the Go-Live
date of October 7, 2014 is missed, and is attributable solely to Thomson Reuters, then a penalty equal to the
monthly payment below will be applied. That is, the monthly payment for November 2014 will be waived.
Additionally, any Go-Live date that is missed will be adjusted to the 7" of the following month. Any adjusted
Go-Live date that is missed and is attributable solely to Thomson Reuters will receive similar penalty of
dismissal of its related monthly milestone. The District will make its best effort to approve or reject Go-Live
project deliverables as defined in Exhibit B before the first payment, but in the event that the District does not
respond the Go-Live project deliverables shall be deemed accepted.

Payment Date Amount
November 1, 2014 $201,451.64
December 1, 2014 or upon installation and $201,451.64

acceptance of Version 10.01.00 of Aumentum,
whichever date is later.

| January 1, 2015 or upon installation and $201,451.64
acceptance of Version 10.02.00 of Aumentum,
whichever date is later.

February 1, 2015 or 30 days after payment $201,451.64
number 3, whichever date is later.

A March 1, 2015 or 30 days after payment $201,451.64
number 4, whichever date is later.

Tarrant Appraisal District - Tarrant County, TX — Amendment #1 to Agreement # TX 2010.014 Page2 T.W.

54



Payment Date Amount

| April 1, 2015 or 30 days after payment number $43,991.06
1 5, whichever date is later.
$157,460.60
1 Upon Final Acceptance
| Total $1,208,709.86

Travel related expenses will continue to be billed as used as previously
outlined in agreement # TX2010.014

The following chart states some elements of the functionality of the releases of the software after the Go-Live
version for purposes of this Amendment #1 to Agreement TX2010.014 and Exhibit A to that amendment.

While there are many more functions in each release, these functions should be present and complete in each
named release.

ID Description Release Version
: i 10.02

117352 Electronic Rendition Validation/Import Validation file causes 10.03 - Final
Import Poblem Acceptance

10.02

10.02
10.03 - Final
Acceptance
10.03 - Final
Acceptance
10.03 - Final
Acceptance

10.02

o JLL 7 B 10.02

118671 Batch Prin 10.02
e e

11 : : 10.01

Tarrant Appraisal District - Tarrant County, TX — Amendment #1 to Agreement # TX 2010.014 Page 3 T.W.

55



ANNUAL MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT FEES

Original Adjusted Annual
Software Product Annual Price Price
GRM Records, Enterprise Edition
GRM Real Property (CAMA)
GRM Personal Property
GRM Assessment Administration
GRM Appeals Management
includes ARB functionality & iSettle)
Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: $259,885.00
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #1 $259,885 $259,885
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #2 $267,682 $265,082
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #3 $275,712 $270,384
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #4 $283,983 $275,792
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #5 $292,503 $281,307
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #6 $301,278 $286,934
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #7 $310,316 $292,672
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #8 $319,626 $298,526
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #9 $329,215 $304,496
Adjusted Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: Year #10 $339,091 $310,586

The parties agree that the fees listed above shall cover Maintenance and Support for the products that the
District currently has and will Go-Live with.

Tarrant Appraisal District - Tarrant County, TX — Amendment #1 to Agreement # TX 2010.014 Page4 T.W.

56



MASTER AGREEMENT FOR LICENSED
SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, AND SERVICES

Effective as of the date that this Agreement is last signed by either party (the “Effective Date™).

By and Between And

MANATRON, INC. TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

510 E. Milham Avenue 2500 Handley-Ederville Road

Portage, Michigan 49002 Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6909

(“Manatron”) ("Customer")

Attention: Matthew Henry, Senior Contract Administrator Attention: Mr. Jeff Craig — Director of Administration
Telephone No.: (866) 471-2900 ext. 7099 Telephone No..__ 811- S965- L ooz

Fax No.: (269) 567-2930 Fax No.: 811-595-419%
E-mail Address: matt.henry@manatron.com E-mail Address: v" cral & Eted.o ra

This Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services sets forth the terms and conditions under which Manatron shall license the software programs, sell
the hardware, and/or provide the support and other services described in the attached Schedules TX2010.014.01 and all future Schedules that reference the Master
Agreement No. TX2(J10.014. The term “Agreement” means this Signature Page, the attached General Terms and Conditions, and all Schedules attached hereto or

subsequently signed by the parties.

The parties have exeduted this Agreement as e dates set forth below their respective signatures.

MANATRON, IN /1’ @ TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

By: 2t By: 4 /

V (Signature) Signature)
Its: \J\'ICE- | gesToESY Its: e Djirecror
> / (Type or Print Position) ™—" (Type or Print Position)
Dac: 24 /vy pue: =1 &= /]

Witnessed: Zz /}” WAL

4 By:
iy (Sig;i}x;éf (Signature)
By: /77/‘\ %é)f/‘? s Its:
(Type or Print Namcz// (Type or Print Position)
Date:
By:
(Signature)
Its:
(Type or Print Position)
Date:
Witnessed: _
Date:
SIGNATURE PAGE
[/
Master No.: TX2010.014 Page 1 of 10 MANATREN
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010 MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

57



GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. DEFINITIONS.

As used in this Agreement:
“Acceptance” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 3.2.1.

“Compliance Update” means a change made to the Software to reflect a mandated
change in an applicable Law.

“Computer System” means the digital computer processor(s), random access
memory, disk subsystem, network software, Database Software, operating system
software, and other hardware or software components or programs that are used in
conjunction with the Hardware and/or Software,

“Customization™ means any improvement, derivation, extension or other change to
the Software made by Manatron at the request of Customer, including any that
result from the joint efforts or collaboration of Manatron and Customer. Manatron
may, from time to time and in its sole discretion, incorporate Customizations into
the Software as “Enhancements.”

“Database Software” means relational database management systems (RDMS),
such as Microsoft SQL Server, Qracle, or similar Third-Party Software that is
utilized by the Software to store Customer data on a disk sub-system as part of the
operation of the Software.

“Designated Processor” means the computer processing device that provides the
primary control for the interpretation and execution of the Software and is
designated on the applicable Schedule or, if not so identified, on which the Software

is initially installed or, if a software activator device is required, the computer

processing device within which the software activator is properly installed.

“Documentation” means any standard operator and user manuals, product
specifications, glossary, index, training materials, and other similar materials
generally made available and provided by Manatron for use with the Software.

“End User” means the Customer or any employee(s), affiliate(s), agent(s),
representative(s), or any other person under the direction or control of the
Customer, that uses the Software to perform certain functions or tasks as required
by the Customer.

“Enharcement” means any modification or addition that, when made or added to
the Software, changes its utility, efficiency, functional capability, or application,
Manatron may, in its sole discretion, designate an Enhancement as minor or major.

“Error” means any failure of the Software to conform in any material respect to the
functional specifications agreed to by the customer and identified in the GAP
Analysis or the Software Design Matrix. Errors are further classified by their
impact in Appendix A below.

“Error Corrections” means a modification or an addition that, when made or
added to the Seftware, establishes material conformity of the Software to the
functional specifications agreed to by the customer, or a procedure or routine that,
when implemented in the regular operation of the Software, eliminates the cause of
the error and provides a long term solution.

“Go Live Acceptance Date” means the date on which TAD accepts the final
Manatron GRM CAMA. software as the “system of record” and the software is
placed into production for daily business use.

“Hardware” means the Computer System components and equipment, other than
the Database Software, Software, and Third-Party Software, as listed in the
applicable schedule.

“Implementation Plan” means a detailed description of the tasks to be performed
by each party in connmection with the implementation of the Software, the
deliverables for each task, and the commencement and completion dates for each
task.

“Installation” means all preparation, processing, and other tasks necessary to
install the Database Software, Software, or Third-Party Software on the Designated
Processor to make it operational,

“Installation Date” means the date on which Manatron completes
Installation of the Software, or Third-Party Software, on the Designated
Processor, testing and acceptance by the Customer or, in the case where
Customer requests or causes a material delay in the performance of
installation, the date set forth in the Implementation Plan for
commencement of installation (if for Hardware) or acceptance testing (if
for Software or Third-Party Software),

“Law” means any applicable state, county, or local statute, law,
ordinance, or code.

“Minimum Requirements” means the minimum requirements for the
Computer System as set forth on the associated Schedules. The
Software may operate on a Computer System that is below the Minimum
Requirements, but such operation is not warranted by Manatron.

“Notice of Completion” means: () if Manatron is to provide
implementation services, a written notice from Manatron stating that
installation and implementation of all Hardware, Software, and/or Third-
Party Software at Customer’s site has been completed and that the
Software is available for acceptance testing; or (b) in all other cases, a
written notice from Manatron stating that all Hardware, Software, and/or
Third-Party Software has been delivered.

“Professional Services” means any Installation, Implementation
Service(s), Software configuration, training, consulting, Support
Service(s), Customization, and other similar service(s) performed by
Manatron under the terms of this Agreement.

“Project Management” means the process of planning, scheduling, and
controlling certain activities in order to meet project objectives,

“Release” means a version of the Software denoted by the number to the
left of the decimal point (as compared to a change in the number to the
right of the decimal point). For example, 4.x and 4.1 are the same
Release; 4.x and 5.x are two different Releases. Releases include major
Enhancements and the incorporation of any Version developed after the
Release immediately preceding the most current Release.

“Schedule” and “Schedules” shall have the meanings set forth in
Section 2.1,

“Seat” means a unmique physical device, such as a terminal,
microcomputer, or similar computing device that is part of the Computer
System at which an End User has access to some, or all, of the Software
or Third-Party Software.

“Site” means a single physical location and single database for which
the Software is licensed. The number of Sites for which Customer is
licensed to use the Software shall be specified in the applicable
Schedule.

“Software” means the software program(s) (in object code format only)
identified on the applicable Schedule, and includes Error Corrections,
Compliance Updates, and new Versions and Releases of such
program(s) that may be provided under this Agreement. The term
“Software” excludes any Third-Party Software.

“Software Design Matrix” is the document, attached as Appendix B,
which identifics all the functional specifications that the Software will
meet according to Manatron’s response to Customer’s Request for
Proposal and commitmenis made by Manatron during the selection
process. The Software Design Matrix is incorporated into this document
for all purposes and will serve, in part, as the basis for Customer’s GAP
analysis.

“Software Modification” has the same meaning as “Customization” if
made at the request of Customer under the terms of this Agreement, and
as “Enhancement” when made by Manatron as part of the development
or enhancement of the Software or Third-Party Software.

“Support Services” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.

Master No.; TX2010.014 Page2 of 10 MANATEGIN
Date: December 10, 2010

© Manatron, Inc. 2010 MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

58



“Test Period” means the period of time agreed to by Manatron and TAD for testing
the adequacy of the Software following (a) Customer’s receipt of the Notice of
Completion upon installation of the Sofiware for testing or (b) in the case where
Customer requests or causes a material delay in the performance of implementation
services, the date set forth in the Implementation Plan for commencement of
acceptance testing.

“Third-Party Software” means any third-party software program(s) provided to
Customer under this Agreement and listed on the applicable Schedule.

“Version” means a new version of the Software that includes minor Enhancements,
Emor Corrections, and/or Compliance Updates, which is indicated by a different
number to the right of the decimal point (e.g., “4.1” and “4.2” represent different
Versions of Release “4”).

“Web Hosting” means providing the infrastructure, such as the hardware, software,
and communication lines necessary to enable a computer system to communicate
with a designated server.

2. SCHEDULES.

2.1 Schedules. Manatron shall license the Software and perform the services
described in the schedules designated on the Signature Page and such additional
schedules as the parties may execute from time to time (individually and collectively
referred to as the “Schedule” and “Schedules™).

2.2 Conflicting Terms. Each Schedule shall be a part of, and govemed by, the
terms and conditions of this Agreement. If there is a conflict between these General
Terms and Conditions and any Schedule or the Statement of Work (SOW), the terms of
the Schedule or SOW shall control unless otherwise noted in any Schedule or SOW.,

3. SOFTWARE LICENSE.

3.1 Grant. Manatron grants to Customer a perpetual, nontransferable (except as
otherwise provided in Section 17.9), nonexclusive license to use the Sofiware and
Documentation solely on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

3.2 Acceptance Testing,

3.2.1 During the Test Period, Customer may test the Software to
verify that it conforms in all material respects to the functional specifications
identified in the GAP Analysis Document and in the Software Design Matrix. If
the Software does not so conform, Customer shall promptly notify Manatron in
writing, and Manatron shall work diligently to correct all nonconformities free of
charge to Customer. If, after a reasonable period of time, Manatron is unable to
correct nonconformity in the Software, Customer may, as its sole and exclusive
remedy, return the Software and Documentation to Manatron and receive a refund
of any payments received for the license fee.

3.2.2 The Software shall be considered accepted for all purposes
(“Acceptance”) upon notification by Customer that the Software is in compliance
based on the following criteria: The system is in full production mode, the system
is the “System of Record”, and acceptance testing has been completed by TAD.

Scope of Rights. Customer may:

3.2.3 Install the Software on the Designated Processors for
production and test-system basis of operation and may, upon notice to Manatron,
move the Software to a different processor, or, in the event of a disaster, run the
Software on a back-up processor.

3.24 Use and execute the Software only in connection with the
operations of the Site(s). Unless otherwise provided in the applicable Schedule,
Customer must purchase a license for each site for which the Software is used.
TAD may allow off site access to the system by third parties such as taxing units or
their agents, appraisers in the field, and property owners or their agents, without
the need for additional licenses.

3.2.5 Make copies of the Software for backup and archival purposes
only, provided that (a) no more than two (2) copies of the Software are in existence
at any one time, and (b) Manatron’s copyright and other proprietary legends are

Master No.: TX2010.014 Page 3 of 10
Date: December 10, 2010

reproduced on each copy. Customer shall keep appropriate records of
the number and location of all copies and make such records available
to Manatron upon request. All copies that are made by Customer shall
be the property of Manatron,

3.2.6 Make copies of the Documentation for Customer’s
intemal use only, provided that Manatron’s copyright and other
proprietary legends are reproduced on each copy.

3.3 Restrictions. In addition to other restrictions set forth in this
Agreement, Customer may not;

3.3.1 Use, copy, modify, or distributc the Software
(electronically or otherwise) or any copy, adaptation, transcription, or
merged portion thereof except as expressly authorized under this
Agreement;

3.3.2  Use the Software for any purpose for the benefit of
any third party (including anybody of government other than the entity
that executes this Agreement) in a commercial, retail, service bureau, or
similar enterprise; providing, however, that Customer may use Software
for the benefit of the taxing units that Customer serves as a part of its
legal responsibilities or for taxpayers or the State of Texas in compiling
information required by law;

3.3.3 Translate, reverse engineer, decompile, recompile,
update, enhance, or create derivations of all or any part of the Software,
or merge any Software with any other software or program, except as
agreed to by Mapatron (in the case of application of new releases, fixes,
etc.);

3.3.4 Without prior written approval of Manatron,
modify or manipulate the data maintained in the standard database
structure schema that is documented as part of the Software, except by
those means provided in the Software and queries;

33.5 Without prior written approval of Manatron,
modify, extend, or add tables, including, without limitation, the
structure and sequence of any database or database files that are used by
the Software, including those created by or for Customer under this
Agreement; or

3.3.6 Remove the labels or any proprietary legends from
the Software or its Documentation.

3.4 Title Manatron reserves all rights not expressly granted to
Customer hereunder. Customer understands that the license granted herein
transfers neither title nor proprietary rights to Customer with respect to the
Software or Documentation. Any data supplied by Customer or any data
developed by Customer while using Software shall remain the property of
Customer.

3.5 Right to Audit. Manatron shall have the right, within ten (10)
days of Manatron’s written request, during normal business hours and at times
mutually agreed upon by Manatron and Customer, to audit Customer’s use of
the Software to monitor compliance with this Agreement. If an audit reveals
that Customer has exceeded the restrictions on use, appropriate remedial
action will be taken to re-establish in-use restrictions to a level of compliance,

3.6 Third-Party Software. Customer acknowledges and agrees that
each Third-Party Software product is the property of the respective third-party
owner or licensor and that Customer has no right or title, nor will it assert any
right or title, in the same except as expressly granted in writing by the terms
and conditions of such third-party license or purchase agreement. All Third-
Party Software provided to Customer under this Agreement shall be used only
in accordance with the applicable license agreement from the third-party
owner or licensor.

3.7 Tools and Customizations. Customer shall not have any right to
independently make such changes to the underlying code of the Software.
Customer may develop, and shall retain ownership of, hooks, interfaces, or
similar tools for use with the Software, provided that the hook, interface, or
tool does not use any part of the Software or require any modification or
alteration of the underlying code of the Software. Manatron shall own all

MANATRUN

© Manatron, Inc. 2010 MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

59



right, title, and interest (including all associated intellectual property rights) in and to any
Customizations to the Software.

4. SUPPORT SERVICES.

4.1 Scope. Provided that Customer is current in the payment of the applicable
support fee, Manatron shall provide the following support services (collectively referred
to as “Support Services”):

4.1.1 Telephone Support. Manatron shall provide Customer with
telephone support services for Hardware and Software from 8:00 am. to 5:00 p.m.
Eastern Standard Time (EST), Monday through Friday, excluding the following
holidays: New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day,
Thanksgiving Day and the immediately succeeding Friday, Christmas Eve, and
Christmas Day. Manatron may from time to time amend its holiday schedule upon
at least sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Customer.

4.12 Web Site. Manatron shall maintain a web site that contains
information concemning the Software and Support Services.

4.13  Error Corrections. Manatron will respond to any Errors
reported by Customer in accordance with its response policy attached hereto as
Appendix A. Manatron may from time to time amend its response policy upon at
least sixty (60) days’ prior written notice to Customer.

4.14  Compliance Updates. Manatron shall exercise due diligence
and, in accordance with the highest professional standards, provide Customer, in a
timely manner, with Compliance Updates, provided that Customer actively
monitors changes in applicable laws or regulations and provides Manatron with
timely written notification of such changes. Customer understands and agrees that
Manatron’s ability to meet its obligations under this Section is contingent upon
publication of the change by the applicable regulatory agency and notification to
Manatron in a manner that provides Manatron sufficient time to prepare and
distribute the Compliance Update before the effective date of the change.
Manatron will notify customer of the target date for achieving required
Compliance Updates. Manatron shall not be responsible for and assumes no
liability for any failure by any agency to provide sufficient advance notice of any
change or any errors or omissions contained in any information provided by any
agency. Compliance updates will be included in the Maintenance fees at no
additional cost if any single update does not require a technical effort by Manatron
exceeding 3,000 hours of programming time. All other compliance update efforts
by Manatron shall be spread on an equitable basis across Manatron’s affected
customer base, on a time and materials basis. Manatron shall make compliance
updates for implementation by the effective date of the change in law where
possible.

4.1.5 Releases/Versions. Manatron shall provide Customer with
new Releases/Versions of the Software. Customer understands that its
implementation of a new Release/Version may require Customer to upgrade its
Computer System.

4.2 Supported Software. Manatron’s obligation to provide Support Services
shall extend only to the current Release and prior Versions whose Release number begins
with the same number or immediately preceding number. For example, if the current
Release is 4.5, Manatron will support only those Versions between 3.x and 4.5. If
Customer desires support for earlier Versions of the Software, such support may be
treated by Manatron as additional consulting services for which Customer will be billed
at Manatron’s then current time and material rates.

4.3 Customer Obligations.

4.3.1  Customer shall designate one or more persons, depending on
the size and complexity of Customer’s application, through whom requests by
Customer for Support Services shall be made. Manatron shall not be required to
accept calls or requests from anyone other than a designated contact person.
Customer may change its designated contact person at any time upon notice to
Manatron.

4.3.2  Customer shall implement and follow the reasonable written
instructions of Manatron regarding operation of the Software.

Master No.: TX2010.014 Page 4 of 10
Date: December 10, 2010

433 Customer shall purchase, install, and maintain a
Computer System that complies with the Minimum Requirements.

4.4 Third-Party Software Support. Manatron shall provide
Customer with telephone assistance for the Third-Party Software during the
hours set forth in Section 4.1.1. If Manatron is unable to resolve a problem
with the Third-Party Software, it shall contact the appropriate vendor on
Customer’s behalf and coordinate and monitor correction efforts by the
vendor.

4.5 Services Outside Scope. The exclusions set forth in Section 9.4
shall apply to Manatron’s obligations to provide Support Services under this
Section 4. Services provided by Manatron that are not within Manatron’s
obligations under this Agreement shall only be performed after the execution
of, or an amendment to, a Professional Services Schedule or an approved
change control and shall be billed at Manatron’s then-current time-and-
material charges, including travel and all other out-of-pocket expenses
provided that customer agrees to said expenses in advance and prior to any
service being performed, and the performance of services is outside of the
scope of regular support services.. Manatron shall bill Customer a minimum
charge of two (2) hours for all services provided under this Section 4.5.

5. OTHER SERVICES.

5.1 Description. Manatron shall provide Services (other than Support
Services) as set forth in the applicable Schedule.

5.2 Implementation Services. The terms set forth in this Section
shall apply if the applicable Schedule provides for the provision of
implementation services by Manatron:

5.2.1 Joint Development. Manatron and Customer shall
jointly develop the Implementation Plan using Manatron’s standard
implementation  methodology ~with TAD’s approval. The
Implementation Plan shall be made part of the applicable Schedule
without any further action.

522 Amendments. Manatron and  Customer
contemplate that the Implementation Plan will, from time to time, be
amended during the project. All amendments to the Implementation
Plan shall be made in writing on a change control request form and
signed by the Project Manager for each party (as defined below).
Services requested of, and provided by, Manatron that are not within
Manatron’s obligations under this Agreement shall be subject to the
payment provisions set forth in Section 7.3.

523 Interdependencies of Dates. Each party
understands that any variation from the performance dates set forth in
the Implementation Plan may adversely impact project milestones and
completion dates, including, without limitation, the date of completion
of the project.

5.2.4 Efforts. Each party agrees to use all commercially
reasonable efforts to fulfill its obligations under the Implementation
Plan and to meet the performance dates set forth in the Implementation
Plan,

5.2.5 Adjustments. To the extent that either party fails
to perform its obligations in accordance with the performance schedule
that is set forth in the Implementation Plan, the parties may negotiate an
adjustment to the schedule in accordance with Section 5.2.2.

5.2.6 Manatron Project Manager. Manatron shall, as
soon as practicable following the execution of the applicable Schedule,
assign a project manager (the “Manatron Project Manager”) who shall
have the principal responsibility for overseeing and managing the
performance of obligations of Manatron under the Schedule and who
shall be the primary point of contact for Manatron. Manatron may not
substitute other persons in this position without the prior written
approval of Customer, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld. Manatron agrees that the Manatron Project Manager shall

MANATREIN

© Manatron, Inc. 2010 MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

60



dedicate such time as needed to perform the services in accordance with the
performance schedule set forth in the Implementation Plan.

5.2.7 Customer Project Manager. Customer shall, as soon as
practicable following the execution of the Schedule, assign a project manager (the
“Customer Project Manager”) who shall have the principal responsibility for
overseeing and managing the performance of obligations of Customer under the
Schedule and who shall be the primary point of contact for Customer. Customer
may replace the person serving as its Customer Project Manager upon prior written
notice to Manatron.

6. INSURANCE

6.1 Insurance Coverage. During the term of this Agreement, Manatron shall
maintain insurance coverage covering its operations as follows:

Maximum Coverage Amount (per

Insurance Type occurrence)
Workers” Compensation and | No less than the limits of liability
Emplover Liability. required by law.
Automobile Liability. No less than $1,000,000
Data  Processing Emors &

Omissions. $3,000,000

Commercial General Liability:
General Aggregate $2,000,000
Products 2,000,000
Personal/Advertising Injury 1,000,000
Each Occurrence 1,000,000
Fire Damage 1,000,000
Medical Expenses 10,000

6.2 Certificate. Upon request by Customer, Manatron shall provide Customer
with certificate(s} of insurance. Manatron shall use all commercially reasonable efforts
to provide Customer with at least thirty (30) days written notice prior to the expiration or
cancellation of coverage afforded under the applicable policies.

7. FEES AND PAYMENT TERMS.

7.1 License Fees. Customer shall pay Manatron the license fecs set forth in the
Statement of Work.

7.2 Support Fees. Customer agrees to pay Manatron the support fees set forth in
the Statement of Work. The first year prorated annual support fees shall be invoiced in
advance, commencing on the first day of the month next following the date of the final
Software payment made by the Customer pursuant to the SOW and shall cover a period
through December 31 of said year. Thereafter, annual support fees for each subsequent
year (years 1 thru 5) shall be annually invoiced in advance beginning January 1 of each
year, and shall cover a twelve (12) consecutive month period ending December 31. The
annual support fees will provide Customer with all forms of maintenance as required for
continuing support of the software. This provision will include all new releases of the
software from Manatron at no additional cost to the Customer. In the event Manatron
provides Customer with any new software product or Release, Manatron may publish and
apply a revised Support Services fee schedule that shall not be subject to the
aforementioned price increase limitations. Customer shall be entitled to fixes,
enhancements, or changes to the Software that might otherwise be provided through the
maintenance and support agreement, but that occur prior to the date that the Customer’s
obligation to begin Support payments pursuant to this contract.

7.3 Other Services Fees. Unless otherwise stated in the applicable Schedule,
Customer shall pay all fees for Services (other than Support Services) on a time-and-
material basis based on Manatron’s then-current rates and charges for the Services.
Manatron will bill other Services as used. Other service fees must be pre-authorized by
customer in advance of service provision.

7.4 Reimbursable Expenses. Customer agrees to reimburse Manatron for all
reasonable and customary out-of-pocket expenses, including, but not limited to, travel,
tolls, parking, lodging, and communication expenses incurred by Manatron in connection
with the performance of Services provided that Customer agrees to the said expenses in
advance and prior to any services being performed, and the performance of services is

Master No.: TX2010.014
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010

Page 5 of 10

outside the scope of regular support services, Meal expenses shall not exceed
Manatron’s then-current per-diem amount,

7.5 Tnvoices/Acceptance. All invoices shall be paid in accordance
with the terms set forth in the applicable Schedule. If Customer delays an
invoice payment for any reason, Customer shall promptly notify Manatron in
writing the reasons for such delay. Unless otherwise agreed by both parties,
Manatron may apply any payment received to any delinguent amount
outstanding.

7.6 Taxes. The fees set forth in this Agreement do not include any
amounts for taxes. Unless Customer provides Manatron with proof of
exemption therefrom, Customer shall pay all applicable taxes levied by any
tax authority based upon this Agreement, the Software, Hardware, and/or any
Professional Services performed by Manatron, excluding any taxes based
upon Manatron’s income. It shall be Customer’s sole obligation to challenge
the applicability of any tax. If Customer shall become subject to tax at any
time following the execution of this Agreement, Manatron shall have the right
to assess the tax liability applicable under this Agreement to Customer, and
Customer agrees to pay Manatron for such tax liability within thirty (30) days
after receiving written notice of such tax liability from Manatron,

7.7 Penalties for Delay. Neither Customer nor Manatron shall be
subject to any delay penalty, contract fee adjustment, offsct or liquidated
damages as a result of any delay, except for the delay of payment(s) as set
forth in Section 7, unless specifically set forth in the applicable Schedule.

7.8 Price Changes. If Manatron utilizes a third-party Hardware
Maintenance services provider, Manatron shall be entitled to change any price
charged to Customer for Hardware Maintenance services upon thirty (30) days
prior (to the next invoicing cycle) written notice in order to pass through to the
Customer any price increases or decreases which the Hardware Maintenance
services provider may from time to time make. Manatron shall be entitled to
increase any price charged to Customer for Third-Party Software and/or
Hardware Maintenance services provided by Manatron upon thirty (30) days
prior written notice to Customer, but no more than once every twelve (12)
month period under this Agreement.

8. ADDITIONAL CUSTOMER RESPONSIBILITIES.

8.1 Communications Equipment. At a minimum, Customer is
required to provide Manatron with access to their network over the Internet.
Internet-based connections must be secured using the Microsoft Windows or
Cisco VPN client. All other VPN clients are not supported.

8.2 Site Condition. Customer shall maintain site conditions that
conform to common industry standards for all computer systems and/or media
devices.

8.3 Records. Customer shall create and maintain timely, accurate, and
readable electronic back-ups of all data and program and system files.

8.4 Computer Virus Protection. Customer shall, at its own cxpense,
install and periodically update a computer virus program to protect its
Computer System and database from computer viruses that may, from time to
time, be transmitted or downloaded. Manatron shall not be responsible for
any computer virus and expressly disclaims any liability for loss or damage
caused by any computer virus cn Customer’s computer platform or database.

8.5 Security. Customer shall, at its own expense, protect the security
of its Computer System and prohibit unauthorized access to the Computer
System. Manatron shall not be responsible for any security breach and
expressly disclaims any liability for loss or damage caused by the
unauthorized access to Custorer’s Computer System.

9. WARRANTIES.

9.1 Software. Manatron warrants that the Software will conform in ail
material respects as software for the efficient operation and administration of
ad valorem taxation functions performed by Customer pursuant to the laws of
the State of Texas. Manatron agrees to correct or replace, at no charge, any
nonconformity of which it receives notice during the warranty period. In

MANATREN

T pees ENI

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

61



addition, Manatron warrants that any Enhancement, Customization, Compliance Update,
and/or Error Comection will conform in all material respects to the functional
specifications agreed to by the customer. The warranty period for the all software
delivered by Manatron, including any Enhancement, Compliance Update, and/or Error
Correction shall expire simultaneously with the start of the first year service coverage
agreement. Manatron’s sole obligation to Customer, and Customer’s exclusive remedy
for breach of warranty under this Section 9.1, is the timely and satisfactory correction or
replacement of any nonconformity. Customer shall provide Manatron with written notice
that nonconformity exists, and Manatron shall have a reasonable period of time, based on
the severity of the nonconformity, to correct the Sofiware. Manatron warrants that the
Software does not contain any disabling devices that would allow Manatron to terminate
operation of the Software. Manatron further warrants that, to the best of its knowledge,
the Sofiware does not contain any viruses. Damages inflicted by viruses, Trojans or
malware of any kind in the software delivered by Manatron will be the total responsibility
of Manatron, and will be resolved by Manatron.

9.2 Services. Manatron warrants that all Services provided under this Agreement
will be performed in a workmanlike manner. Customer shall notify Manatron in writing
of any breach of this warranty within days after completion of the Service. Manatron’s
sole obligation to Customer, and Customer’s exclusive remedy for breach of this
warranty, is re-performance of the Service.

9.3 Third-Party Software; Hardware. MANATRON MAKES NO
WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO ANY HARDWARE OR THIRD-PARTY
SOFTWARE, AND WHATEVER WARRANTY MAY APPLY TO ANY HARDWARE
OR THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE PRODUCT, IF ANY, IS ONLY AS IS EXPRESSLY
STATED BY THE THIRD-PARTY MANUFACTURER, OWNER, OR LICENSOR OF
THE HARDWARE OR THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE. MANATRON EXPRESSLY
DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES FOR THE HARDWARE AND THIRD-PARTY
SOFTWARE, WHETHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING THE
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, NON-INFRINGEMENT, AND FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

9.4 Exclusions. Manatron’s warranty obligations and other obligations under this
Agreement, with respect to the Hardware and Software, are expressly conditioned upon
Customer’s proper use and do not include;

9.4.1  Support or correction of errors or increases in service time that
result from (2) accident, neglect, misuse, or use other than ordinary use; (b) failure
of electrical power, air conditioning, or humidity controls that cause a computer
failure; and () modifications made to the Software by other than a representative
of Manatron;

9.4.2  Problems and errors that Custorner cannot reproduce;

9.43 Problems refating to, or caused by, (a) any hardware, third-
party software, Internet Service Provider (ISP), or software that was not supplied
by Manatron, or (b) use of a Computer System that does not meet the Minimum
Requirements; or

9.44  Problems relating to or caused by changes in, or modifications
to, the operating characteristics of any computer hardware or operating system for
which the Software is procured,

9.5 Corrections of errors, defects, and malfunctions that are traceable to any of the
foregoing or to any Customer errors or system changes, any ISP, or any third-party
hardware and/or software, shall be billed at Manatron’s then-current time-and-material
rates, including out-of-pocket cxpenses provided that Customer agrees to the said
expenses in advance and prior to any services being performed, and the performance of
services is outside the scope of regular support services.

9.6 Disclaimer. PURSUANT TO SECTION 9.1, MANATRON WARRANTS
THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL PERFORM ITS INTENDED PURPOSE AS
SOFTWARE FOR THE EFFICIENT OPERATION AND ADMINISTRATION OF AD
VALOREM TAXATION FUNCTIONS PERFROMED BY CUSTOMER PURSUANT
TO THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS WARRANTY AND THE OTHER
WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION 9, ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. MANATRON EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS
ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, TITLE, AND FITNESS FOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

Master No.: TX2010.014
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, In¢. 2010

Page 6 of 10

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

10.1 Defined. As used in this Section 10, “Confidential Information”
includes the Software and Customizations in any embodiment, the terms,
conditions, and pricing of this Agreement, and either party’s technical and
business information relating to inventions or software, research and
development, future product specifications, engineering processes, costs,
profit or margin information, marketing, and future business plans, as well as
any and all intemal customer and employee information, and any information
exchanged by the parties that is clearly marked with a confidential, private, or
proprietary legend. Information that is conveyed orally shall be designated as
confidential at the time of disclosure and shall be reduced to writing within
ten (10) business days. Notwithstanding any provision in this Section 10.1,
Customer specifically acknowledges that the Software, including without
limitation the database architecture and sequence and Documentation,
compris¢ Confidential Information and know-how that are the exclusive
property of Manatron.

10.2 Nondisclosure. The parties agree, unless otherwise provided in
this Agreement or required by law, not to use or make each other's
Confidential Information available to any third party for any purpese other
than as necessary to perform under this Agreement. The recipient shall
protect the Confidential Information from disclosure by using the same degree
of care, but no less than a reasonable degree of care, that it uses to protect its
own confidential information of a like nature to prevent its unauthorized use,
dissemination, or publication by its employees or agents. Customer further
agrees that it will not allow any form or variation of the Software to enter the
public domain. Both parties acknowledge that any breach of its obligations
with respect to Confidential Information may cause the other irreparable
injury for which there are inadequate remedies at law, and that the non-
disclosing party shall be entitled to equitable relief in addition to all other
remedies available to it. Customer shall not disclose the results of any
performance or functionality tests of the Software to any third party without
Manatron’s prior written approval.

10.3 Exceptions. A party's Confidential Information shall not include
information that (a) is or becomes publicly available through no act or
omission of the recipient; (b) was in the recipient’s lawful possession prior to
the disclosure and was not obtained by the recipient either directly or
indirectly from the disclosing party; (c) is lawfully disclosed to the recipient
by a third party without restriction on recipient’s disclosure, and where
recipient was not aware that the information was the confidential information
of discloser; (d) is independently developed by the recipient without violation
of this Agreement; or (¢) is required to be disclosed by law.

11. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION.

11.1 Scope. Manatron agrees to indemnify and defend Custorner
against any claim or action brought by any third-party for actual or alleged
infringement of any United States patent, copyright, or trade secret based
upon Customer’s own internal use of the Software in accordance with this
Agreement and to pay any damages and costs finally awarded against
Customer or paid in settlement. Manatron shall have the sole right to conduct
the defense of any claim or action and all negotiations for its settlement,
unless the parties to this Agreement agree otherwise in writing.

11.2 Notice. Customer shall give Manatron prompt written notice of
any threat, warning, or notice of any claim or action that could have an
adverse impact on Manatron’s rights in the Software.

11.3 Alternatives. Manatron shall not be responsible for any
settlement entered into without its consent. In the event of a claim or
action under Section 11.1, Manatron may, in its sole discretion, (a)
procure for Customer the right to continue using the Software; (b)
provide a substitute, non-infringing Software that is acceptable to
Customer; or (c) terminate this Agreement and refund the license fees
paid by Customer.

11.3 Exclusions. Manatron shall have no obligation under this Section
11 with respect to any claim or action that is based upon (4) Customer’s use of
the Software in breach of any term or condition of this Agreement; (b) the use

MANATRON

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

62



or combination of the Software with any third-party product, software, hardware, or
system; (¢) modification of the Software other than by a representative of Manatron; (d)
use of a Version of the Software other than the most current Version of the Software,
where use of the most current Version would have avoided the claim of infringement.

11.4 Sole Remedy. This Section 11 states Manatron’s sole responsibility and
obligation, and Customer’s sole and exclusive remedy for any infringement claim.

12. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY.

12.1 Limitation and Disclaimer. MANATRON’S LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES
OF ANY KIND, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION OR THEORY OF
LIABILITY, SHALL NOT EXCEED MANATRON’S INSURANCE COVERAGE. TO
THE EXTENT THAT A CLAIM IS NOT WITHIN MANATRON’S INSURANCE
COVERAGE, MANATRON’S LIABILITY SHALL NOT EXCEED: (A) IN THE
EVENT OF DAMAGES ASSOCIATED WITH A SERVICE OR HARDWARE
PRODUCT, THE FEE PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR THAT SERVICE OR
HARDWARE PRODUCT UNDER THE APPLICABLE SCHEDULE; OR (B) IN ALL
OTHER CASES, THE LICENSE FEE PAID BY CUSTOMER FOR USE OF THE
SOFTWARE. IN NO EVENT SHALL MANATRON BE LIABLE UNDER ANY
CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, OR OTHER LEGAL OR
EQUITABLE THEORY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE,
EXEMPLARY, OR EXCESS COSTS OF REPROCUREMENT (“COVER COST™),
INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, INCLUDING
DAMAGES RESULTING FROM INTERRUPTION OF USE, LOSS, OR
CORRUPTION OF DATA, LOST REVENUE, LOSSES RESULTING FROM
SYSTEM SHUTDOWN OTHER THAN LOSS OF CUSTOMER DATA UNLESS
THAT LOSS OF DATA IS DUE TO CUSTOMER BACKUP ACTIVITIES, FAILURE
TO ACCURATELY TRANSFER, READ, OR TRANSMIT INFORMATION,
FAILURE TO UPDATE OR PROVIDE CORRECT INFORMATION, STOLEN OR
MISUSED PASSWORDS, SYSTEM INCOMPATIBILITY OR PROVIDING
INCORRECT COMPATIBILITY INFORMATION, CR BREACHES IN SYSTEM
SECURITY, WHETHER OR NOT MANATRON HAS, OR SHOULD HAVE HAD,
ANY KNOWLEDGE, ACTUAL OR CONSTRUCTIVE, OF THE POSSIBILITY OF
SUCH DAMAGES, AND NOTWITHSTANDING ANY FAILURE OF ESSENTIAL
PURPOSE OF ANY REMEDY, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
AGREEMENT.

13. THIRD-PARTY SERVICE DISCLAIMER. Unless otherwise stated in the
applicable Schedule, Manatron shall not be liable for, and Customer hereby
assumes the risk of and shall indemnify and hold harmless Manatron against, any
claim, injury, loss, damage, or expense (including attorneys® fees), either direct or
indirect, incurred, made, or suffered by Customer in connection with or in any way
arising out of the furnishing, performance, or use of services provided by any third
party contracted by Customer to perform services in connection with the Software.

14. TERM.

14.1 Agreement. This Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall
remain in full force and effect until the last Schedule has expired or has been terminated,
unless sooner terminated in accordance with the terms of Section 15.

14.2 Software and Third-Party Software Support Services. Unless otherwise
provided in the applicable Schedule, Support Services for Software and Third-Party
Software shall commence on the first day of the month next following the date of the
final Software payment made by Customer pursuant to the SOW and shall continue
through December 31 of said year. After completion of the partial year, Support Services
for Software shall continue for an initial period of thirty-six (36) months (“Software
Support Services”). Software Support Services shall renew automatically for additional
terms of twelve (12) months unless Manatron provides the Customer written notice of
termination ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of the initial term or any
subsequent twelve-month term or unless Customer does not pay for the succeeding
twelve (12) month term. Software Support Services shall renew automatically for
additional terms of twelve months upon payment of fee by Customer. If Software
Support Services are discontinued by Customer or terminated for any period, and
Customer desires to reinstate such services, Customer shall pay all annual support fees in
arrears, in addition to the then-current annual support fee.

Master No.: TX2010.014
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010

Page 7 of 10

14.3 Hardware Maintenance Services. Unless specifically identified
in the Support Services Schedule, all Hardware Maintenance will default to
“Manufacturer Warranty Only.”

14.4 Other Services. The term for Services (other than Support
Services) provided under this Agreement, excluding support services, shall
terminate upon completion of the services or shall remain in effect for the
period specified in the applicable Schedule.

15. TERMINATION.

15.1 By Either Party. Either party may, at its option, terminate a
Schedute immediately upon written notice to the other party if the other party:

15.1.1 Breaches its confidentiality obligations under this
Agreement.

15.1.2 Breaches any obligation set forth in this Agreement
and fails to cure the breach, or develop a plan to cure the breach, within
thirty (30) days after written notice of the breach from the other party.

15.1.3 Ceases conducting business in the normal course,
admits its insolvency, or makes an assignment for the benefit of
creditors.

15.1.4 Becomes the subject of any judicial or
administrative  proceedings in  bankruptcy, receivership, or
reorganization, and such proceeding is not dismissed within ninety (90)
days after it is commenced.

15.2 By Customer. In the event the proper appropriation of funds for
the continuation of this Agreement is not made by Customer for any fiscal
year after the first fiscal year, then this Agreement may be terminated. To
effect the termination of this Agreement, Customer shall, within thirty (30)
days following the beginning of the fiscal year for which the proper
appropriation is not made, provide Manatron with written notice of the failure
to obtain the proper appropriation of funds. No penalty shall accrue to
Customer in the event of exercise of termination due to non-appropriation.

15.3 Effect of Termination. The termination of this Agreement shall
not affect the Customer’s rights to the Software pursuant to Section 3.1
provided that Customer has paid all Software license fees set forth in the
applicable Schedule(s) and Customer is not in breach of any provision of this
Agreement or the Schedules. If Customer terminates this Agreement prior to
the payment of all Software license fees, or if Customer is in breach of this
Agreement, Customer shall immediately cease using the Software and shall
either destroy or return the original and all copies, in whole or in part, in any
form, of the Software and related materials. Customer shall certify such
action in writing to Manatron within one (1) month after the termination date.
If Customer terminates a Schedule for Support Services under Section 15.1
above, Customer shall receive a prorated credit of the annual support fee paid
for the then-current term to be applied to future services. Upon termination of
a Schedule, Customer shall, within thirty (30) days of termination, pay all
amounts due and owing under that Schedule. Upon termination of the
applicable Schedule and upon request by Customer, Manatron shall return all
data supplied by Customer in a format reasonably requested by Customer
(other than Manatron’s proprietary format) without charge to Customer, as
further described in Section 15.6 below, If Manatron fails to promptly return
all data supplied by Customer or developed by .Customer while using
Software, Customer is entitled to Specific Performance of retum of its data
and damages, court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees for the cost of
obtaining the return of Customer’s data.

15.4 Survival of Certain Obligations. Obligations and rights in
connection with this Agreement which by their nature would continue beyond
the termination of this Agreement, including without limitation, Section 10
shall survive termination of this Agreement.

15.5 Termination for Material Defect If, during the User Acceptance
Testing process or during production usage of the software, but prior to the
issuance of Final Acceptance, as defined in the SOW, the Customer identifies
that the software is producing material errors or malfunctions that cause the

MANAT N

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

63



software to fail to operate in substantial conformance with its intended purpose as
software for the operation and administration of ad valorem taxation functions under the
laws of the State of Texas, then Customer may notify Manatron of the specific errors or
malfunctions in writing. For the purposes of this Agreement, 4 material error shall be
defined as a Priority 1 or Priority 2 error, as described below in Appendix A, that is
solely the result of a deficiency in software functionality. Once the Customer has
notified Manatron of the material error generated during testing, Manatron shall have the
right to cure the deficiency within sixty (60) days of receipt of the written notice by
Client unless the parties agree to a mutually acceptable longer time period for the cure. If
Manatron fails to cure the identified defect within the prescribed time period after the
written notice of the defect and Client has acted in good faith to work with Manatron to
resolve the deficiency, the Customer shall have the option of declaring this agreement
null and void and will receive a refund of all payments made through the date of
termination under this contract. If Customer declares this agreement null and void,
Customer shall immediately return software provided under this agreement to Manatron,
For the purposes of this Agreement, once the Customer has signed off on the Final
Acceptance Deliverable set forth in the SOW, the client shall no langer have the right to
declare this Agreement null and void pursuant to this Section 15.5. A written notice
pursuant to this clause is timely if placed in the mail, faxed, or delivered to an overnight
carrier on or before two years following the date the Customer accepts the product,

15.6 Extraction of Data. Upon termination pursuant to this section, Customer
shall have the right to use the Software for a period not to exceed 90 days or until the
Customer procures replacement software which performs the tax appraisal and collection
funetions set forth in Software Design Matrix provided that the Customer continues to
pay the maintenance and support fees provided for by paragraph 7.2 for the time period
that the Licensee continues to use the Software. Manatron agrees to provide standard flat
file and/or comma-delineated extract of the data within the system and provide the file
layout of such data to Customer for use in the conversion and transfer of the tax appraisal
and collection data on the Software to the replacement software procured by the
Customer. At the option of the Customer, Manatron agrees to make resources available
to provide a customized version of the extracted data, provided that the Customer agrees
to pay reasonable time and materials fees for the production of the customized extract.
Upon completion of the conversion and transfer of the tax appraisal and collection data
from the Software to the replacement software, Licensee shall immediately destroy all
copies of the Software, certify to Licensor that it has retained no copies of the Software,
and acknowledge that it may no longer use the Software, and Licensor’s obligations
under this Agreement shall cease. Licensee agrees that in the event of termination
through its default, all fees or charges due as of such date shall immediately become due
and payable.

16. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.

16.1 Informal Dispute Resolution. If a dispute, controversy, or claim arises
between the parties relating to this Agreement, the parties shall promptly notify one
another of the dispute in writing. Each party shall promptly designate a representative to
resolve the dispute. The representatives shall meet within ten (10) days following the
first receipt by a party of such written notice and shall attempt to resolve the dispute
within fifteen (15) days.

17. GENERAL.

17.1 Customer List; Publicity. Customer authorizes Manatron to use Customer's
name in its list of Customers. The parties agree that either party or both may issue a
mutually acceptable news release regarding Customer’s use of the applicable Software
and Support Services. Each party’s approval of such news release will not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed. Once a press release has been issued, Manatron may
publicly refer to Customer (by name only) as being a customer of Manatron, and only in
relation to this Agreement except as otherwise authorized by Customer.

17.2 Amendments, No provision of this Agreement may be amended or modified
except by a written document signed by duly authorized representatives of both parties.

17.3 Notices.

17.3.1 Delivery. Except as otherwise provided herein, or within the
Statement of Work, any notice or other communication between the parties hereto
regarding the matters contemplated by this Agreement may be sent by United
States mail (first class, airmail, or express mail), commercial courier, facsimile, or
electronic mail, in each case delivered to the address specified for the recipient,
Any written notice required to be sent under Section 15 ("Termination™) or Section

Master No.: TX2010.014
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010

Page 8 of 10

16 ("Dispute Resolution") must be sent by U.S. mail (first class,
airmail, or express) or commercial courier.

1732 Receipt. Communications shall be deemed
received, if by mail, on the earlier of receipt or the third calendar day
after deposit in the mail with postage prepaid; if by courier, when
delivered as evidenced by the courier'’s records; if by facsimile, upon
confirmation of receipt by the sending telecopier; and if by electronic
mail, when first available on the recipient’s mail server. If received on
a day other than a business day, or on a business day but after 4:30
p-m., recipient’s local time, the communication will be deemed received
at 9:00 am. the next business day.

17.3.3 Contact Person. Notices shall be addressed to the
attention of the contact person listed on the Signature Page. Any party
may change its contact person or address for purposes hereof by
delivering a notice thereof to cach other party hereto, but any element
of such party's address, which is not specified in that notice, shall not be
deemed changed.

174 Technology Life Expectancy. Customer understands,
acknowledges, and agrees that the technology upon which the Hardware,
Software, and Third-Party Software is based changes rapidly. Customer
further acknowledges that Manatron will continue to improve the functionality
and features of the Software to improve legal compliance, accuracy,
functionality, and usability. As a result, Manatron does not represent or
warrant that the Hardware, Software, and/or Third-Party Software provided to
Customer under this Agreement or that the Computer System recommended
by Manatron will function for an indefinite period of time. Rather, Manatron
and Customer may, from time to time, analyze the functionality of the
Hardware, Software, Third-Party Software, and Computer System in response
to changes to determine whether Customer must upgrade the same. Customer
upgrades may include, without limitation, the installation of a new Release,
additional disk storage and memory, and workstation and/or server upgrades.
Customer upgrades may also include the installation and/or removal of Third-
Party Software. Customer is solely responsible for all costs associated with
future resources and upgrades.

17.5 Excusable Delays. Neither party shall incur liability to the other
party on account of any loss or damage resulting from any delay or failure to
perform all or any part of this Agreement, excluding payment obligations,
where such failure is caused in whole or in part by events, occurrences, or
causes beyond the reasonable control of the party, provided that such party
has taken reasonable steps to mitigate the effects of such delay.

17.6 Statute of Limitations. No party may commence an action under
this Agreement more than two (2) years after the expiration of its term, or, in
the event of a breach, more than two (2) years after the occurrence of the
breach, or, in the event the breach is not discovered by the injured party when
it has occurred, more than two (2) years after the breach could, in the exercise
of due diligence, have been discovered by such party.

17.7 Injunctive Relief. Manatron and Customer agree that in the event
of any breach of Section 10 monetary damages may not be a sufficient remedy
or protection for the aggrieved party, and that the aggrieved party shall be
entitled to injunctive or other relief as may be deemed proper or necessary by
a court of competent jurisdiction.

17.8 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be govemed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the customer’s state of domicile.
Any cause of action conceming this contract shall have venue in the courts of
Tarrant County, Texas or the Northern District of Texas United States District
Court.

17.9 Assignment. Customer shall not assign, sublicense, or otherwise
transfer its rights, duties, or obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in
part, without the prior written consent of Manatron, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed.

17.10 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is prohibited or
unenforceable by any applicable law, the provision shall be ineffective only to

MANATESE

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

64



the extent and for the duration of the prohibition of unenforceability, without invalidating
any of the remaining provisions.

17.11 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously, in one or
more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together
shall constitute one and the same agreement.

17.12 Subcontractors. Manatron reserves the right to subcontract work, as it
deems necessary, and is acceptable to the customer, to perform the Services under this
Agreement. Manatron shall be fully responsible for the acts of all subcontractors to the
same extent it is responsible for the acts of its own employees.

17.13 Independent Contractor. The relationship of Manatron to Customer shall
be that of an independent comtractor. No principal-agent or employer-employee
relationship is created by this Agreement.

17.14 Waiver. No failure by either party to take any action or assert any right
hereunder shall be deemed to be a waiver of such right in the event of the continuation or
repetition of the circumstance giving rise to such right.

17.15 Executable by Facsimile. Any signature of this Agreement or any
Schedule through facsimile shall constitute execution of the Agreement or Schedule by

such party.

17.16 Non-Discrimination. Manatron, to the extent required by law, shall not
discriminate against an employee or applicant for employment with respect to the hire,
tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or a matter directly or indirectly
related to employment, because of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, or
disability that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular
job or position.

17.17 Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the entire agreement and
understanding between Manatron and Customer with respect to the subject matter of this
Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements and understandings
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. No statement, representation, warranty,
covenant, or agreement of any kind not expressly set forth in this Agreement shall affect,
or be used to interpret, change, or restrict, the express terms and provisions of this
Agreement. The terms and conditions of any purchase order or other instrument issued by
Customer which are in addition to or inconsistent with this Agreement shall be of no
effect and shall not be binding on Manatron.

Master No.: TX2010.014 Page 9 of 10
Date: December 10,2010

© Manatron, Inc. 2010 MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

MANATR&N

65



APPENDIX A

RESPONSE POLICY

After the testing of the system and acceptance of the Software by Customer, Manatron shall respond to any Errors reported by Customer based on the priority code
assigned to such Error. Customer shall identify the priority code when it initially reports the Error to Manatron. Manatron may, in its reasonable discretion, re-classify
the Error after its initial investigation. If Customer requests, in writing, that the Error be resolved with a priority code higher than the assigned level, Customer will pay
Manatron for that support on a time-and-materials basis at Manatron’s then current rates. The priority codes and responses are as follows:

Priority Definition/Impact Manatron’s Responses
Manatron will use all commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) respond to
The problem causes an immediate major impact on Customer’s Customer within one hour, indicating that Manatron has received the report of
1 business. The problem has caused Customer’s use of the software, ora | the error; (ii) provide an initial status report to Customer within two hours,
significant component thereof,, to stop or substantially deviate from the and regularly communicate thereafter the status of a reported incident; and
Documentation. No timely workaround exists. (iii) provide the appropriate modifications, bug fixes, and other changes to the
software as soon as reasonably possible.
Manatron will use all commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) acknowledge
. s . receipt of the error within four hours of the report; (ii) verify the reported
ThC probl; o cafuses an impact on C ustomen: s busnpess. A Yvorkaround error and regularly communicate the status to Customer; and (iii) provide the
2 is not available; however, processing can still continue but in a . dificati i d other ch th A,
restricted manner appropriate modi cations, bug xes, and other changes to e_soﬁware within
’ ten days, or to continue its efforts indefinitely beyond this period when an
error remains unresolved.
L. s . Manatron will use all commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) acknowledge
3 Igzsp;:?ligzzf: ?rl:t?;:gg?li c;t;gvl::;gmer s business. The problem receipt of the error within one business day of the report; and (ii) respond to
p P . the error within thirty days.
Manatron will use all commercially reasonable efforts to: (i) acknowledge
4 The problem has no business impact. receipt of the error within one business day of the report; and (ii) consider
addressing the issue in a future version or release.

KZ1.1B:388350.7\116365-00001
I 02/17/11 4:07 PMOH3141+-4:23-PM

Master No.: TX2010.014

Page 10 of 10

Date: December 10, 2010

© Manatron, Inc. 2010

MANATR&N

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

66




Software Design Matrix

General Software Design

The application must be written for an n-tier computing environment.

The most current version of source code will be maintained in escrow with provisions for release of the
code to TAD in the event the firm ceases operations.

The application must support distributed processing server technology.

The application must provide for scaling through the use of job servers.

The application will support use of a “Citrix” or _Microsoft “Terminal User Services” technology.

The application allows for a fully redundant Windows and SQL Clustering solution to minimize downtime.

The application utilizes object development tools.

The applications software delivered to TAD will be written in Windows browser-based .NET.

The application must utilize graphical user interface tools for ease of use.

The application will provide online help, including:

The help must be context-sensitive.

It will use the standard windows “What’s This?” functionality.

The online help must be updated with every product release.

Manatron will maintain an on-line forum or chat-sessions to provide instant assistance with
problem issues.

Online help windows will be made available for input fields where values come from supporting
tables.

The application will use generally available report writers for all its forms and reports.

The application must be installed using standard methods in their respective platforms.

New releases are downloadable from the vendor’s website.

Software Updates and fixes are available for download from the vendor’s website.

The system provides for application program interfaces (API) hooks or other programmatic linkage or
integration tools.

A new release, update or fix can be emailed to the user for installation.

The system data model should be FGDC (Federal Geographic Data Committee) compliant.

The system provides for lized software deployment management.

The application must maintain a one
tables.

-to-any relationshlp between the owner table and the property/parcel

The application must maintain a one-to-many relationship between the property/parcel table and the owner
table,

The application must provide for linking multiple accounts to represent a single property as in a
parent/child relationship.

The application must allow for ownership % to be applied and maintained at the land, improvement and
personal property segment level.

The application must allow for entity % to be applied at the property level. For example, a property is
only 50% inside city limits — and not have to split the account.

The application must allow for entity % to be applied and maintained at the land, improvement and
personal property segment level.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 1
67




The application must maintain a complete set of appraisal history, along with account details, per tax year.

The application must allow for calculations of value to be performed on previous years accounts.
This includes valuation detail for each of the three approaches to value.

The application must capture a complete set of appraisal information when a property is sold.

This must include land and improvement detail appraisal information.

Modification to Land and Improvement detail information must be allowed without affecting
current values.

The application does allow for calculations of value to be performed on appraisal information captured at
the time of sale.

The application must support multiple improvement structures for an account.

The application must support multiple components for each structure.

The application must support all unique characteristics of mobile homes.

The application must support grouping of commercial accounts within an economic unit.

The application must support detailed records for leased assets including location addresses for taxing
jurisdiction determination.

The system must allow muitiple owners per parcel/account.

The interests and values must be maintained at the account level.

The system must support multiple addresses per taxpayer.

The system must allow the user to indicate which address is for mailing.

The system must provide for a separate situs address and mailing address, and include validation
methodology for both.

The system does support multiple phone numbers, fax numbers, and email addresses per taxpayer.

The system must support CASS Certification information.

The system must allow for identification or flagging of international addresses.

The system must provide the ability to flag returned mail.

The system provide for identification or flagging of “confidential” owners/addresses such as peace officers
and judges. (SB 247) '

The system must accommodate property descriptions maintained distinctly by year.

Based on the Manatron expression of capacity, there is no maximum number of taxing entities
that are allowed per account.

Based on the Manatron expression of capacity, there is no maximum number of exemptions allowed by
account.

The facility must exist to allow an account be inactivated or deleted.

Capability must exist to allow recovery or reinstatement at a later date.

The recovery process must restore all of the original account details including appraisal data.

The system must also restore history of building permits, and linkage to photos, and other scanned
images.

The system will support multiple situs addresses per account.

The system does support multiple Doing Business As (DBA's)

The syste must kec1 1ehlstoy year for all entities.

There is no maximum number of certified history years the system retains.

The system must allow for corrections, additions or deletions to the certified roll for any year.

The system must allow for corrections, additions or deletions to a previous years certified roll.

The system has no limitations as to the number of certified years in the past that can be altered due to
changes or corrections.

The system must keep full appraisal information by year. The details of the land, improvement, and
business personal property are retained.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 2
68



The system must provide that a property, for a prior year, can be “recalculated” without affecting current
values.

The system can produce a supplemental appraisal roll listing all property involved in the corrections. The
following conditions are accommodated:

This roll can be grouped by entity.

This roll can be grouped by year.

This roll can be grouped by supplemental action. (i.e. additions, deletions, and modifications)

This roll can print a summary totals page indicating the gains or losses for each entity.

This roll can be re-printed on demand.

This roll can be re-printed even if subsequent rolls have been accepted.

The system can generate an Adjusted History Total after each supplement.

The system can generate this report, or any of the above mentioned reports, in an electronic
version to be processed by tax collection offices or entities.

The system allows for multiple supplement groups to be opened at the same time.

The system will provide the ability to produce a certified roll (or totals) from a previous or archived year.

The system allows for a “future supplement” to be started allowing for the 30-day notice requirement.

The system allows the importing of electronic data, (i.e.. appraisal details or adjustments) back into the
system.

The system will allow the importing of electronic building permits.

The system will allow importing and retention of CASS certification data.

The system will allow importing of mineral account data.

The system does allow importing mortgage company records.

The system supports importing of mailing address changes from NCOA processing.

The system supports electronic signature pads and importing of signatures.

The system will support the importation, of any data assembled in an external program, back into the
system updating specific fields.

The system allows exporting of data.

The system allows exporting of appraisal information.

The system allows exporting of CASS data.

The system allows exporting of ownership changes.

The system allows exporting property summary data.

The system allows exporting shared property data.

The system allows exporting sales submission data.

The system allows exporting of mineral data.

The system allows exporting of data for the Comptrollers on-site review appraiser.

The system allows exporting truth-in-taxation data.

The system supports exporting of names and mailing addresses for National Change of Address (NCOA)
processing.

The system allows exporting of mineral data in user defined formats.

The system does allow any and all data, assembled via query, to be exported to an outside database
program ‘

The system tracks all changes and/or modifications to an account by users.

The system tracks all system-defined events for a property such as value notice generated, ARB protest
generated, ownership transfers, etc..

The system retains an image of the value notices generated.

The system can display in a chronological order the events attached to a property.

The system allows different users to see appraisal events for an account at the same time.

The system allows data elements that have changed to be identified and tracked.

The system does allow viewing of all changes made to the fields being tracked.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 3
69



The system provides that all change log entries are captured and retained on a before and after field data
basis.

The system will track changes to records even when performed outside of the application such as an update
statement using SQL.

The system will identify and track sales survey forms.

The system will allow the user to attach any Windows objects (i.e., video, images, etc.) to an event for an
account.

The system requires that a user ID and password are requlred to access the system

A user ID and password can be created to only have specific or limited screens/functions available to them
on the system.

A user ID and password can be created to limit ones ability to modify specific fields on the system.

The system allows a user the ability to choose between a training or test database and the live database.

The system allows user security to be specific to individual years.

The system allows officials from remote appraisal offices, tax offices, state agenmes etc to log in and
access the CAMA data.

The system has a way to track general inquiries from property owners.

The system provides a way to archive and retrieve inquiries at the account level.

The system provides a means for inquiries to be sorted and listed in different ways.

The system provides for inquiries to be scheduled by appraiser.

The system allows for these inquiries to have the status changes in mass.

The system stores the beginning value and the ending value for the inquiry.

The system automatically saves an image of any letter mailed to property owner or agent.

The system tracks events related to a particular inquiry.

The system allows for any Windows object to be attached to an inquiry event.

The system tracks a change log associated with the inquiry tracking system.

The system will allow for document images to be scanned or attached into an inquiry record.

The system will allow user defined searches of inquiry records.

The system allows the search configuration to automatically refresh at a pre-defined interval for monitoring
purposes.

The system has reports associated with the inquiry tracking system.

The system has the capability to allow user designed reports that could be used to check for things like data
quality.

Mass Appraisal Functionality

The application will maintain appraisal information, including related schedules and valuation data, by ‘
year.

The system utilizes user-defined schedules to be used to calculate value.

The system provides for the schedules be maintained by year.

The system provides maintenance for schedules to be mass updated.

The system allows improvement features to be user-definable. (i.e. interior, exterior, fireplace, etc)

The number of user-definable features is unlimited within the system.

The system provides that the user-definable features can be used to modify value.

The system allows all the following units of measurements to be used in the appraisal process:

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 4
70



Square footage;

Acreage;

Front footage;

Lot depth;

Length/width;

Wall Height;

Area Perimeter;

Percentage of main area of over-all value;

Percentage of main area dollars per square foot;

User-definable features;

Flat Value Pricing;

Percentage of entity;

Number of units.

The application must allow for an unlimited number of land and improvement adjustments.

The adjustments are code-driven.

The adjustments can be identified as percentage or value adjustments.

The system allows for a description to be associated with each adjustment.

The application will allow mass value modifications by means of:

Neighborhood;

Subdivision;

Cost Multiplier;

Local Multiplier;

The system provides that changing the value of any of the above mass modifiers flag the
associated properties automatically for mass recalculation without user intervention;

The system provides that if a mass modifier is deleted, the associated properties are automatically
flagged for mass review or recalculation without user intervention so that there is a way to
maintain the referential integrity of the data.

The system supports the use of Marshall & Swift valuation models.

The system will allow market adjustments for the following (in any combination)

ISD;

Subdivision;

Block/lot range;

Base land value;

Class;

Improvement square footage;

The system allows land valuation to be done by multiple methods.

The system supports the linking multiple accounts for analysis throughout the valuation process.

The Residential system features a pro-forma valuation module whereby:

Building Components can be added, changed or deleted.

Physical, Functional or Economic obsolescence codes can be added, changed, or deleted.

A printout of the above types of changes can be generated in support of a settlement?

The system does support a mineral interest valuation method with mass update capabilities.

The system’s mineral accounts will show the owner name and mailing address, lease name, royalty interest,
railroad commission number, well operator, and tax district and special district codes with percentages.

The system will allow grouping of commonly owned mineral accounts.

The system will allow for data exchange interfaces with most mineral appraisal firms.

The system will support separating accounts into user-defined geographic groups such as the QUADS used
at TAD.

The system will support year based, categorized comments at the building level, account level, and grouped
account level.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 5
71




The system does provide for confidential comments.

The system provides for copying general property data from one parcel to another.

The system does support a classification system for categorizing improvements.

The system allows for multiple buildings per account, each with unique characteristics and classifications.

The system provides for base cost rates and modifiers.

The system allows for all three forms of depreciation; physical deterioration, functional and economic
obsolescence.

The system does provide for land schedules.

The system does support the valuation of land by individual sections.

The system provides for individual sections to have different characteristics such as zoning and state code.

The system provides for identification and valuation of excess land.

The system provides for identification of unique land characteristics.

The system provides for establishing land base rates and adjustments.

The system provides the ability to override base rates, modifiers, depreciation, land value and other key
fields.

The system provides for a percentage completion schedule based on building components per property

type.

The system provides for copying improvement data from one parcel to another.

The system provides for three cost approaches on any one property, 1) Marshall and Swift Books, 2)
Marshall & Swift Residential & Commercial Black Box Approach, and 3) Points based Cost Approach.

The system provides for the creation of mass appraisal models utilizing the market, cost, and income
approaches to value. Once an appraisal model is established, the said model can be applied to a
neighborhood or market area producing consistent mass appraisal result on the properties within the
selected neighborhood based on the criteria establish within the model.

The system allows for multlple personal property segments (i.e. inventory, furniture & ﬁxtures, etc.)ona
personal property account.

The system allows for user-defined schedules.

The system allows for unlimited years of rendered information.

The system allows the user to define and maintain codes (such as jurisdiction, use, status, etc.).

The system allows for the application of depreciation schedules.

The system allows the user to define and apply quality and density schedules on a personal property
segment.

The system must allow the user to define the value of a segment that is considered special inventory.
Special inventory presently in the dealer's inventory of motor vehicles, heavy equipment, vessels and
outboard motors, and manufactured housing,

The system will be enhanced to allow tracking monthly sales dollars, volume and vehicle detail of
special inventory property.

The system provides asset management for leased assets at various situs locations.

The system allows importing of leasing accounts line item details.

The system accommodates for interstate allocation of assets.

The system will have an automated process for assigning jurisdiction codes for leased assets located at
various situs locations, or will interface with TADs existing methodology.

The system will allow attachment to an account an excel or other file that is not a PDF.

The system allows user-modified classification by Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) or North
American Industrial Classification System (NAICS).

The system will allow for the submission of an electronic rendition from TAD's website.

The system will accommodate all forms of absolute and partial exemptions? (i.e., abatements, deferrals,
pollution control, Freeport exemption, foreign trade zone).

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 6
72



The system assigns jurisdiction codes to BPP accounts by linking to the real estate account.

The BPP system has analytical/statistical report capabilities.

The system will be enhanced to allow a BPP system link to the GIS application within the system.

A BPP account be linked to a real property account.

The system provides for model building from renditions or other cost data.

The system will be enhanced to provide that segments can be selected by the user from different value
sources to create an overall, or blended, final value.

A BPP account can be linked to a building permit, certificate of occupancy, etc.

The system accommodates portable field devices for BPP accounts.

st l mo

The system supports Marshall and Swift for commercial properties.

The system allows storage of actual income data, including all income fields specified in USPAP Standard
6.

The system provides for proforma calculations based on actual income data, models or user defined
overrides.

The system provides for PGR to be calculated using a weighted average based on entering individual rents
per rental space.

The system provides for lease-up calculations and DCFs.

The system does allow storage of asking rent data.

The system supports for loading a cap rate with tax rates.

The system supports storage of itemized expense components.

The system supports storage of market rents, vacancies, expenses, and cap rates.

Final value determination of multi-account groupings may be allocated back to the individual accounts.

Searches can be performed using commercial classes and commercial submarkets as well as criteria listed
in section 18.

The value can be allocated back to individual buildings per account.

That allocation can be made on a percentage basis.

That allocation can be a scheduled unit allocation based on property type or building class.

That allocation can be overridden by the user.

The system provides a mechanism to freeze values with code/description reason.

The system must provide for matched paired analysis, multiple regression analysis and linear regression
analysis.

The system will include the re-expression of the TAD commercial system, inluding the ability to create
ECUs, add accounts to ECUs, weight three approaches, defaults and overrides, caluculate and reconcile
values.

The system will include the enhanced Beyond Appraisal upload/download module (query tool).

The system will include the Beyond Appraisal Tracker and Inspections Management package.

The system will include the enhanced Beyond Appraisal query and reporting tools.

The system provides for model building of sales data and income data.

The system supports the creation of default models determined by user-defined criteria.

The model building process allows for applying a weighted percentage for each of the three approaches to
be used in the final reconciliation of value.

The system provides for models to be mass updated

The final value determined by each of the three approaches can be displayed on a m screen.

An individual can select one or more of the three approaches to calculate a reconciled value.

A percentage can be applied to the value from each approach to create a blended value using two or three
of the approaches. If so...

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 7
73




This percentage can be model derived or user overridden.

The system provides that if a property component was not part of sales and/or income approach, the value
of that individual component can be added to the calculation prior to final reconciliation. (excess land, out
bldg, mobile hm, etc)

The application rid retention of sales B

An unlimited number of instruments can be retained.

These instruments are displayed in chronological order.

The application allows for multiple sales to be recorded on one account.

The application allows for multiple properties within one sale record.

The system will combine the market values of properties before comparing to sale price.

The application allows for land-only and improvement-only indicators on sale records.

The system will only use the value indicated when comparing to sale price.

Sales financing information can be stored with sale records.

The system can record multiple confirmations.

The sale can be flagged as confidential.

Comparable sales can be extracted using user-definable criteria.

Histograms and scatter diagrams are available on the sales history.

All of the following statistics are reported on comparable sales in the application:

Mean;

Median,;

Variance,

Standard Deviation;

Coefficient of Dispersion;

Sales ratio of the property.

Data entry does provide for all PTAD required fields.

The system supports electronic building permits.

Permits can be located by Permit Number.

Permits can be located by Permit Type.

Permits can be located by Appraiser Assigned.

Permits can be located by Property Owner.

Permits can be located by Property ID.

Permits can be located by Situs.

A report can be printed of building permits.

A report can be printed for specified building permits.

Permits can be coded active or inactive.

_ Permits can be coded with multiple properties.

Permits have a date worked.

Permits have a date completed.

Permits have percent complete.

Permits can be imported from other types of files.

Permits can be imported from entities and using predefined criteria or parameters be matched to an account
or multiple accounts and automatically added to building permit file associated to the respective accounts.

The systll i us-frdyress for g ulra use anm er

use) rollbacks.

The system does all calculations automatically for both types of AG rollbacks.

The system allows multiple AG rollbacks on a single property at the same time.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 8
74



The system provides an AG rollback calculation worksheet to be given to the taxpayer.

The system must support comparable sales data searches. The criteria must include the following:

Comparable sales can be located by Region Code;

Abstract or Subdivision Code;

Neighborhood Code;

Subset Code;

Map ID;

School Code;

City Code,

Improvement Class;

Living Area;

Improvement Year Built;

Improvement Unit Price;

Improvement Additive Value;

Land Type;

Land Area;

Land Area Type;

Land Unit Price;

Sale Type;

Sale Date;

Sale Price;.

Any combination of the above.

Comparable sales must be allowed to be ‘weighted’ by factors above.

A comparable sales grid printing capability must exist, including photographs, images, or sketches of the
comps.

Report printing capability must exist for the selected comps.

Appraisal cards of the selected comps will also have print capability.

Comparable property can be located by same criteria above even if the property has not sold.

Comparable sales and comparable property can be located by appraisal year.

The system allows for adjusting sales prices and to indicate an adjusted sales price.

System allows sales returned in searches to be individually deselected or removed from sales grid.

Specific accounts can be individually inserted into a sales grid.

A value can be computed using a median or average sales price per unit of comparison from comparables
in the grid.

The system allows for the calculated value be overridden.,

Confidential sales can be identified on the grid. (HB 2188)

The system supports adhoc sales searches that may not be part of the final value calculation? (i.e.. an
individual component of a larger account grouping)

Comparable criteria can be saved for later retrieval by other users.

The system automatically generates a comparable sales grid weighted to the characteristics of the subject.

The system automatically can adjust each individual comp sale component in relation to the subject
property.

The system does adjust for land market difference between the subject and comp.

The system adjusts for effective year built differences between the subject and comp.

Does the system adjust for living area difference between the subject and comp?

The system can adjust for each improvement detail segment difference.

The system can adjust for plumbing differences between subject and comp.

The system can adjust for fireplace differences between subject and comp.

The system does adjust for number of bedrooms between subject and comp.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 9
75




The system shows the indicated value for the subject based on the comps listed.

The system shows the mean & median for the subject indicated value.

The system allows for the comp grid to be associated with a property record for later retrieval (i.e. ARB
Meetings).

The system auatically als for the vi wg f the comp grid geograp ically using G S cove

The system will automatically generate an equitable property grid weighted to the characteristics of the
subject.

The system will automatically adjust each individual equity component in relation to the subject property.

The system adjusts for land market difference between the subject and equity comp.

The system adjusts for effective year built difference between the subject and equity comp.

The system adjusts for living area difference between the subject and equity comp.

The system adjusts for each improvement detail segment difference.

The system adjust for plumbing differences between subject and equity comp.

The system adjusts for fireplace differences between subject and equity comp.

The system adjusts for number of bedrooms between subject and equity comp.

The system shows the indicated value for the subject based on the equity comps listed.

The system shows the mean & median for the subject indicated value.

The system shows the digital picture associated with subject and each equity comp.

The system allows for the equity comp grid to be associated with a property record for later retrieval (i.e.
ARB Meetings).

The system allows for equity comps on the basis of ratio.

The system allows for equity comps on the basis of median appraisal.

The system automatically allows for the viewing of the equity comp grid geographically using GIS
coverages.

The system Iows for plngo

By Neighborhood;

By Abstract/Subdivision Code;

By Region;

By Subset;

By Query.

The profile report provides the following statistical functions:

Lows and highs;

Mean;

Median;

Averages;

Coefficient of Dispersion;

Coefficient of Variance;

Gross Rent Multipliers;

Gross Income Multipliers;

Class Breakdown;

Ability to plot sales ratios via the GIS integration;

Ability to plot sales ratios on a graph.

The system provides Neighborhood Calibration.

The system provides statistics by overall, improved, and vacant.

The application allow the user to ‘link’ profiles

The system provides for agents to be created and maintained in the system.

Multiple agents can be assigned to one account.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 10
76



Multiple accounts can be assigned to one agent.

Individual functional authorizations can be defined on an agent for an account.

The system allows for document images be scanned or attached to agent records.

The system records all variations of representation of an agent at the account level

The system records all variations of representation of an agent at the ownership level.

The system can generate form letters for agent authorizations.

The system can generate form letters for agent expirations or cancellations.

The system allows fiduciary authorizations to automatically expire upon a given date.

The system provides for automatic cancellation of agent authorization when ownership changes.

The system stores the agent address separately from the owner's address.

The system maintains a master file for active agents which includes branch offices.

The system provides for portable field devices to be used for fieldwork.

The system provides a quick, easy, user-friendly process to check out and check-in parcels for fieldwork.

The system will provide a way to configure or define the user interface on the field device and store the
settings by user ID (i.e. commercial appraisers may need a different screen or interface than residential
appraisers or BPP appraisers).

The system allows an account to remain available for non-conflicting data entry work in the office while
the account is checked out.

The system allows the field device to run a full version of the application.

The system allows the field device to run a scaled down version of the application.

The system allows the field device application to provide document imaging in the field.

The system supports on-site photo importation with the field device.

The system supports GIS capabilities while in the field.

The system provides for sales information (comps) to be available on field devices while away from the
office.

¥

{
Support Services Functionality

The system provides for the Parcel/Account be accessed by:

Account Number;

Geographic Number;

Situs address;

Abstract/Subdivision, Block, Lot;

Owner/Taxpayer Name;

Owner/Taxpayer Mailing Address;

Previous Taxpayer Name;

Agent’s ID;

Agent's Company Name;

Previous/old legal description;

Mobile home Serial, Title or HUD number.

The system provides the ability to split property through the use of a wizard.

The system provides the ability to merge property through the use of a wizard.

The system provides for mass creation of new properties through the use of a wizard.

The system provides the ability to link properties.

The system makes historical information available to a user during the split and merge process.

The system creates new account documents from the mass account creation.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 11
77




The system images new account documents from the mass account creation.

The system provides for reprinting of new account documents from the mass account creation process.

The system provides for mass changes in ownership after accounts have been mass created.

The system provides the means necessary for tracking and maintaining shared property information with

other districts.

The system allows information from multiple districts to be attached to one property.

The system tracks all necessary information required for correct appraisal of a shared property.

The system allows for the electronic exchange of this information.

The system includes a comprehensive 25.19 notice selection wizard.

The systems provides for the 25.19 notice form to be printed in-mass in-house.

The system provides for production of the 25.19 notice for prior years to be printed on demand for a single
account or a group of accounts.

The system allows the 25.19 notice to be printed, or exported, into a PDF file format and be printed by a
third party.

The system allows the 25.19 notice form to be exported to an ASCII file.

The system supports printing of notices for both owners and agents.

The system creates a record indicating that a notice was mailed to the property owner or agent.

The system automatically stores an image of the appraisal notice that was generated to the property owner
or the agent.

The system provides the stored image to then be re-printed.

The system records “notice values” system wide at the time the appraisal notices are generated to serve as a
reference point for comparison during the protest period.

The system allow users to create custom queries to selectively code properties to be notified or excluded

“The system will provide for the pructlon of prellmm value estimates to taxing units in April, may and
June.

The system produces certified totals by entity with a separate total for “Under ARB Review" or
“incomplete” items.

The system provides full compliance with HB 1010 and comprehensive tax office reporting capabilities to
deal with county delineated appraisal district boundaries.

The system provides for the appraisal roll to be exported to a file format, common with today's computing,
for taxing jurisdictions.

The system will produce “Effective Tax Rate Calculation” worksheets for tax units per TAD.

The system provides the capability for a new appraisal year to be created and commencement of work
begin before certification of a current year appraisal roll.

The system allows a new appraisal year to be created and commencement of work begin immediately after
certification.

The system allows for the continuation of some kinds of work in a Future Year while still in the protest
season.

The system will provide for all TAD forms of reporting to Tax Units, Tax Offices, and PTAD.

The system provides all required reporting to the PTAD on behalf of all tax units.

A

The system automatically stores a digital i any form or letter generated.

The system has an integrated method of producing mail-merge type letters to property owners, agents,
entities, mortgage companies and attorneys.

The system supports letter processing “templates” that allow for the routing of letters and forms to network
printers.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 12
78



The system must support the generation and processing of certified mail envelopes.

This letter processing system utilizes an industry-standard word processor such as Microsoft Word.

The letter processing system is customizable and users are allowed to create custom mail merge documents.

The system allows users to save customer mail-merge templates for later use.

The mail-merge function can be called from within the CAMA application.

The letter processing system displays all available fields that can be used for mail-merge features.

The letter processing system automatically saves an image of the document that is printed or mailed to the
property owner, agent, entity, mortgage company or atiorney,

The system has an integrated forms processing system that will automatically identify the document being
scanned using a barcode and match or assign it to the bar-coded account.

The forms processing system recognizes all of the approved state comptrollers forms and applications.

The system supports reporting for TIFs (Tax Increment Finance Zones).

The system uses an automated letter processing system to print personalized form letters to the property
owner or agent,

The system supports printing and recording of the following letters for agricultural properties:

Ag exemption use change;

Ag exemption denial;

Ag exemption approval;

Ag exemption more information is needed;

Ag exemption ownership change.

The system supports creation of electronic informal resolutions of values.

The system provides "mouse free" data entry capabilities.

This data entry module provides for the assignment of repetitive functions to certain keys. i.e. Macros

The system provides a "mass"” data entry method utilizing queries or pre-defined parameters such as
subdivision code, geo number ranges, etc.

The system will be enhanced to automatically assign taxing unit ID's, Mapsco ID's, or map numbers to an
account based on the location address or by other means

The system has an effective tool for user defined queries.

Individual users can create and run live queries,

Individual users can create and run queries on historical data.

Individual users can create and save queries (or SQL statements) locally, at their computer, for future use.

Query results can be exported to third party spreadsheet and database software,

Query results can be displayed to a GIS application.

Query results can be edited and/or amended using mass changes tools.

Query results, obtained via a thirds party software, can be imported (or uploaded) back into the CAMA
application database.

Restrictions can be established at the user level to determine what actions can or cannot be made as a result
of query access.

The database is SQL-compliant,

The database can be accessed using generally available ODBC drivers.

It can access other SQL-compliant databases such as GIS servers,

All data-fields are available for "real-time" querying.

Appraisal Review Board Functionality

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 13
79



The ARB package has barcode scanning capabilities.

The system allows creating protests through a wizard.

The system allows protest scheduling for an ARB operated in multiple panels.

The system allows scheduling protests through an automated process.

The ARB package provides effective scheduling tools to make the scheduling process quick and efficient.

User can search by Property ID;

User can search by Case ID;

User can search by hearing date;

User can search by appraiser;

User can search by protest status;

User can search by Inquiry type;

User can search by Date range;

User can search by ARB Panel.

The ARB package provides for an automated document process of ARB related letters and correspondence.

The ARB package tracks all letters printed/generated.

The ARB package allows for multiple properties for a single protest.

The ARB package allows for multiple protests for a single property.

The ARB package allows for the scheduling of specific appraisers for specialized ARB hearings.

The ARB application provides for a written record of minutes, motions, votes and attendees.

The user can print a schedule for the ARB meetings.

All codes are user defined and maintainable.

The ARB data is kept by year.

The ARB package captures digital audio directly to the ARB record.

__The ARB package captures video recording to the ARB record.

The ARB package provides the ability to conduct ARB hearings via internet conferencing. (i.e. WebEx,
GoTo Meeting.com or Microsoft Office Live Meeting)

The ARB package allows for a paperless ARB presentation showing protest information, sales comp grid,
GIS comp grid, etc.

The ARB system integrates with the query capabilities of the system to increase the efficiencies of ARB
scheduling,

The ARB Scheduling software allows scheduling of continuous hearings,

The system provides for the automatic generation of evidence packets.

The evidence packets can be securely published on the internet for taxpayer review.

The ARB scheduling software allows user definable time sequences to schedule the case by.

The ARB scheduling system provides a means to schedule ARB members sitting in panels based on
member availability.

The ARB scheduling software tracks ARB members time and attendance.

The CAMA/ARB system must provide functionality to allow the owner to electronically file protest and
for the District to provide an electronic settlement offer.

Other Functionality

e system has a way to track appraisal related litigation.

The litigation tracking is integrated with the CAMA system.

If the CAMA system does not include integrated tracking, the system should provide a means of integrating
with a third party system.

The system does track court information.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 14
80



The system tracks lawsuit cost information.

The system stores a beginning value and the ending value for the lawsuit.

The system should allow for images to be attached to a lawsuit. If so...
In the event lawsuit imaging is separate from other document imaging, vendor will need to provide
additional information.

The system has a way to track arbitration and SOAH cases.

The system shows arbitration and SOAH information.

The system tracks value changes.

The system has some letter processing for arbitration and SOAH.

The system allows for images to be attached to arbitration and SOAH records.

The system must support a live (or daily updated) connection to the TAD GIS System.
The system allows for GIS to be viewed from within applications.
The GIS system can be viewed from all appraisal applications.
The GIS system cannot presently be viewed from ARB applications. Enhancement required.
The GIS system can be viewed as a presentation at an ARB hearing.
Access to GIS files and layers is controlled at a user level.
Users must have control over GIS layers to be viewed.
The system must provide the ability to turn GIS layers be turned on and off as necessary.
The system must display comparable sales, and their location to the subject, via the GIS interface.
The system must allow equity comparables, and their relative location to the subject, be displayed via the
GIS functionality.
The system must provide the ability to zoom in or out on GIS maps.
Users must have the ability to print maps.
GIS attribute data must be displayed on maps and controlled at the users discretion.
GIS attribute data display must be controllable at the user level.
Users must be able to access an individual account from GIS application.
The GIS interface must have the capability to locate property accounts.
Aerial imagery must be viewable from the GIS application.
The system must provide a quick, user-friendly process to add or update GIS file if needed.
The GIS interface must be capable of use in conjunction with Pictometry.
Users must have the capability to select and de-select properties for updating or modification from the GIS
interface if needed.
User must be able to select properties by radius, line, rectangle, or polygon tools within the GIS interface.

Properties, selected from GIS, must be exportable to external spreadsheet/database programs.

Property values, characteristics or other properties, selected from GIS, must be capable of being altered or
edited using a mass update tool.

The system must provide GIS linkage to both real and personal property accounts.

The system must be capable of full service integrated document and digital interchange in conjunction with
TAD's existing Document Imaging/Work Flow Management system.

The system should provide a means of organizing and classifying documents.

The system should provide a means of organizing documents at a global level.
The system must offer connectivity to a third party document imaging system.
Users must be able to scan and attach documents to accounts in conjunction with TAD's existing Document
Imaging/Work Flow Management system.
Authorized users must have the capability to append pages.
Authorized users must have the capability to replace pages.
Authorized users must have the capability to delete pages.
The desired system would have no limitation to the number of images per account.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 15

81




Specific users can be restricted to certain images within the imaging system.

The system can accept and process all common document/photo file formats via the interface with TAD's
existing Image Processing/Work Flow Management system.

The system provides a means by which taxpayers (or parties external to the system) can upload images via
an internet or other remote connection via the interface with TAD's existing Imaging functionality.

The system shall provide an integrated workflow management system.

The system must include design tools to create, modify or customize workflow processes.

The system does provide for an external system, such as TAD's present functionality, to be integrated into
the CAMA syst

The system does allow r new reles aﬁxes to . t etfr do T

The system has capability for new releases and fixes to be pushed to network servers over the internet.

The system must provide for interfaces to accommodate publishing of appraisal information on the Internet
via TAD's Website.

The system must allow the user to control when and how data is interfaced to the TAD website for
publication.

The GIS functionality of the system must be capable of being published to the internet via TAD's Website.

The system must provide for individual property owner data to be withheld from publishing on the Internet.

The systems appraisal data and all supportive data must be made available for integration into TAD's Web
presence.

The system must provide the necessary enhancements to interface with on-line protests, on-line
settlements, filing of renditions, filing of applications, viewing documents, viewing evidence packets, via
TAD's Website. The system must provide interface capability for required data exchange both to and from
TAD's Website to support all functional requirements.

Modified 1/27/2011 Page 16
82




SCHEDULES FOR MASTER AGREEMENT FOR LICENSED
SOFTWARE, HARDWARE, AND SERVICES

The attached Schedules numbered TX2010.014.01 are made and entered into pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a
certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services No. TX2010.014 between Manatron, Inc. and the

undersigned Customer (the “Agreement”).

By and Between

And

MANATRON, INC.
510 E. Milham Avenue
Portage, Michigan 49002
(“Manatron”)

TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
2500 Handley-Ederville Road

Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6909
("Customer")

Telephone No.: (866) 471-2900 ext. 7099

Attention: Matthew Henry, Senior Contract Administrator

Fax No.: (269) 567-2930

E-mail Address: matt.henry@manatron.com

Attention: Mr. Jeff Craig — Director of Administration

Telephone No..__R17~-595-600 Q
Fax No.: 317 ’5"5‘6/95/
E-mail Address: __ G113 @ tad.orq

|

The parties havefexecuted these
MANATRO jt: Q

Its: _)DKP’ &

gmedules as of the dates set forth below their respective signatures.

TARRANT APPRAI?AL DISTRICT

By:

I Exechnive Dieecrols

Date:

Witnessed:
(Slgnaturc)/

Date:

By: /%L?%/ff‘u/ fren f
/

Date:

By:

Its:

Date:

Witnessed: { A’l

Date: ,2(“5! ’

SIGNATURE PAGE

Date: December 10, 2010

© Manatron, Inc. 2010

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

MANATR&N

e s (5 RN W

83



SOFTWARE SCHEDULE FOR TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
Schedule No. TX2010.014.01 to the Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services. This Schedule is made and entered into
pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services No. TX2010.014
between Manatron, Inc. and the undersigned Customer (the "Agreement").

SOFTWARE
Software Description : Quantity Unit Price Total Price Office

(GRM Records, Enterprise Edition 1
.GRM CAMA (includes ARB, iSettle, ModPro, MARS functionality) 1
GRM Personal Property ) 1
GRM Assessment Administration 1

1
Total Software Fees: $ 1,155,044.00
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION MA N’:\J- EQN

84



MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES (Collectively referred to as "Support Services") SCHEDULE FOR TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
Schedule No. TX2010.014.01 to the Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services. This Schedule is made and entered into
pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services No. TX2010.014

between Manatron, Inc. and the undersigned Customer (the "Agreement").

SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES
Software Product l Annual Price Office
[GRM Records, Enterprise Edition
GRM CAMA
IGRM Personal Property
IGRM Assessment Administration
Total Annual Software Support Services Fees: $ 259,885.00
CUSTOMER MAY BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE ON-SITE ASSISTANCE VIA TELEPHONE FOR REMEDIAL HARDWARE AND/OR
SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE OR SUPPORT.
THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE SUPPORT: Manatron will be the primary interface through direct communications with vendors, manufacturers, and
service providers of the Third-Party Software. As part of first-level support, Manatron shall diagnose errors or problems reported by Customer. If the
errors or problems are determined by Manatron to be related to the Third-Party Software, Manatron shall contact the appropriate service to provide for the
Third-Party Software and to provide assistance in connection with the resolution of the error or problem.
TERM OF SUPPORT SERVICES SCHEDULE: Customer agrees to pay Manatron the support fees set forth in the Statement of Work. The
production year prorated annual support fees shall be invoiced in advance, commencing on the first day of the month next following the date of the final
Software payment made by the Customer pursuant to the SOW and shall cover a period through December 31 of said year. Thereafter, annual support
fees for each subsequent year (years 1 thru 5) shall be annually invoiced in advance beginning January 1 of each year, and shall cover a twelve (12)
consecutive month period ending December 31.
DELAYED BILLING FEES: If Customer is billed on a monthly or quarterly basis for Software Support Services Fees, Customer shall pay Manatron an
annual delayed billing fee equal to the greater of 5% of the total Software Support Services Fees or three hundred dollars ($300.00). The delayed billing
fee may be paid in equal monthly installments.
Date: December 10, 2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010
MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION M AN,\QI 5? N

85




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES SCHEDULE FOR TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

Schedule No. TX2010.014.01 to the Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services. This Schedule is made and entered into
pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services No. TX2010.014
between Manatron, Inc. and the undersigned Customer (the "Agreement").

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
3 Days/ Estimated
General Description of Services Model Number Quantity Unit Price Total Price Annual Fees Completion Date

JProject Management PROJM 1 TBD
Jimplementation Services / Software

Configuration INSAPP 1 TBD

 Training Preparation and 19 days of on-

site Train-the-Trainer Sessions TRNG 1 TBD
[Data Conversion CONV 1 TBD

Total Professional Services Fees: $ 787,303.00 { $

All Professional and Consultation/Training Services Fees are quoted at the current rate and are subject to increase without notice.

Conversion

Manatron will provide conversion services to convert applicable data required to operate the new software from the Customer’s present system to
Manatron’s. All data must be delivered in Manatron’s prescribed format. If not delivered to Manatron in prescribed format, then conversion will be billed at
the then-current rate in effect plus travel-related expenses. Only data required for Manatron application software will be converted. Data maintained in any
third-party software product (Fasport, word processing , spreadsheet, etc.) will be re-entered by the C The p for data ion is further
described in the Statement of Work merged with this Agreement.

e e et et e e cemer e s = = s tn = e sime e ise see beee s ties Gomemmea cmem e e maiegene e mmemesme  ews s m—n e

PROFESSIONAL AND CONSULTATION/TRAINING SERVICES PAYMENT TERMS: Professional and
Consultation/Training Services fees are due and payable after Manatron performs such services in accordance the Statement of
Work. Customer is responsible for all travel-related P d with M: 's Professional and Consultation/T!
Services provided that customer agrees to said expenses in advance and prior to any service being performed, and the performanoe
is outside of the scope of the regular support services.

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL AND CONSULTATION/TRAINING SERVICES PAYMENT TERMS: Manatron shall
provide Professional and Consultation/Training Services to Customer in the amounts identified above. Any additional Professional

or C Itation/Training days req dbyC shall be billed as used at the rate in effect at the time of service. Customer is
responsible for all travel-related exp iated with M. on's additional Professional and C Itation/Training Services.
GENERAL PROVISIONS:

(1) Customer shall provide a suitable room or space where training can be conducted in an uninterrupted manner,

(2) All Customer personnel to be trained should have adequate job coverage to ensure uninterrupted training sessions;

(3) Up to six hours of training are included in a "full day" of training;

(4) Customer acknowledges the importance of receiving the training provided herein and shall use all commercially reasonable
efforts to ensure that said training is fully completed;

(5) Manatron recommends one (1) person per PC/Terminal; and

(6) Class size not to exceed twelve (12) trainees.

Date: December 10,2010
© Manatron, Inc. 2010

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

MANATR&N

NS W

86



SUMMARY SCHEDULE FOR TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT
Schedule No. TX2010.014.01 to the Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services. This Schedule is made and entered into
pursuant to, and subject to the terms and conditions of, a certain Master Agreement for Licensed Software, Hardware, and Services No. TX2010.014
between Manatron, Inc. and the undersigned Customer (the "Agreement”).

ONE-TIME FEES

Description Total Price
HARDWARE $ -
THIRD-PARTY SOFTWARE $ -
SOFTWARE 3 1,155,044.00
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (billed as used) $ 787,303.00
DATABASE HOSTING $ =
Total One-Time Fees - Plus Freight: $ 1,942,347.00

Payment Terms for One-Time Fees: Manatron will invoice the fees set forth in this Agreement according to the billing scheudles set forth in the Statement of Work. The
fees set forth in this Agreement do not include any amounts for taxes. Unless Customer provides Manatron with proof of p herefrom, C shall pay all
applicable taxes levied by any tax authority based upon this Agreement, the Software, Hardware, and/or any Professional Services performed by Manatron, excluding any
taxes based upon Manatron’s income.

It shall be Customer’s sole obligation to challenge the applicability of any tax. If Customer shall become subject to tax at any time following the execution of this Agreement,

Manatron shall have the right to assess the tax liability applicable under this Agreement to Customer, and Customer agrees to pay Manatron for such tax liability within thirty
(30) days after receiving written notice of such tax liability from Manatron,

ONGOING FEES
Description Total Price

SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES - Year #1 $ 259,885.00
ISOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES - Year #2 $ 267,681.00
[SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES - Year #3 $ 275,712.00
|SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES - Year #4 3 283,983.00
SOFTWARE SUPPORT SERVICES - Year #5 S 292,503.00
JANNUAL PROFESSIONAL SER VICE FEES $ @
IMARSHALL AND SWIFT Estimated fees listed in Appendix C

Total Ongoing Fees: $ 1,379,764.00

Payment Terms for Ongoing Fees: Ongoing Support Fees are due and payable in advance of each annual term and are subject to increases as defined in Section 7.2 of the
Master Agreement.

Date: December 10, 2010

© Manatron, Inc. 2010

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION MANAT R—-JN

T s 1 A v,

87



APPENDIX C
TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT

MANATRON, INC.
Approved Marshall & Swift Reseller

2011 END USER LICENSE AGREEMENT (EULA)

The End Nser listed below has been granted the right to use the Marshall & Swift Cost Data in Reseller's CAMA
Program fora period of one (1) calendar year. The End User agrees to pay the appropriate fees for the use of the
data each yeag the End User uses the M&S Cost Data in the Reseller's CAMA Program. If the End User listed
below does not’gay the appropriate fees, the End User agrees to cease using and erase, destroy or disable the
M&S Data in the BAMA Program and that Reseller may erase, destroy or disable all M&S Cost Data found in the
CAMA Program.

End User's Name:

Signature: \ Calendar Year,

Jurisdiction/Company: \ January 1 - December 31,

Address: \
City: \

State: Zip: \

Improved Residential Parcels \ $0.171parcel

Improved Commercial/lndustrial Parcels $0.196/parcel

Improved Agricultural Parcels $0,159/parcel

Mobile/Manufactured Homes Parcels $0.183/parcel

Improved Other/Misc Parcels $0.159/,

Total Number of All Parcels
Improved/Unimproved

PLEASE RETURN TO MANATRON AT 510 EAST MILHAM, PORTAGE, MI 49002 OR FAX TO BARBARA
FITZGERALD AT 269-567-2930 AS SOON AS POSSIBLE

A~

MANATRON CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

MANATR&N
88



Catherine Jane Alder, P.C.

89



CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED
ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION

TO: Jeff Law

Jeff Craig
FROM: Catherine Alder
DATE: December 18, 2018

SUBJECT: Billing for Legal Fees and Expenses

This memo finalizes discussions ongoing since last year about a billing arrangement under
which CJA,PC would charge and TAD would pay a set total amount of legal fees each month.
This memo addresses the legal guidelines for the “flat fee”, “fixed fee” and/or “lump-sum fee”
arrangements you proposed and records our common understandings of the main factors
underlying our agreements as to the basis or rate of fees, the method of charging them, and their
amount.

We have agreed to a “fixed lump-sum flat fee” of $ 32,370.00 per month for the Litigation
and Legal Advisor legal services customarily provided and an hourly rate of $200.00 per hour for
certain additional litigation and other legal services, with legal services rendered to be billed with
summary descriptions as illustrated by the Sample Invoice attached.

Legal Background

The Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct, the Texas Supreme‘ Court
Committee on Professional Ethics, and the courts have historically recognized that “flat fees” or
“fixed fees”, as those terms are used in this memo to mean a lump sum dollar amount billed and
paid after legal services are rendered, are ethically and legally permissible and commonly used

methods of billing and paying for legal services. The Restatement (Third) of the Law Governing

Memo re Billing for Legal Fees and Expenses
Page 1 of 9

90



Lawyers does likewise but also refers to such fees as “lump-sum fees”.! One Texas commentator
favors the term “lump-sum fees” because it avoids confusion with advance payments of so-called
“ponrefundable flat fees” that are ethically and legally prohibited.” Another commentator suggests
the term “fee cap” for the same reason.” Whichever term or combination of them is used, the key
factor makihg such fees ethically and legally permissible is that, in our context, they are billed and
paid for legal services already provided rather than for engagement itself or for future services.
The Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct are the controlling authority
regarding the professional fees of Texas lawyers. The primary rule provides:
A lawyer shall not enter into an arrangement for, charge, or collect an illegal fee or
unconscionable fee. A fee is unconscionable if a competent lawyer could not form
a reasonable belief that the fee is reasonable.
Rule 1.04(a).* The Rules then provide the following non-exclusive list of factors that may be

considered in determining the reasonableness of a fee:

(1)  the time and labor required, the novelty and difficulty of the questions
involved, and the skill requisite to perform the legal service properly;

(2)  the likelihood, if apparent to the client, that the acceptance of the particular
employment will preclude other employment by the lawyer;

(3)  the fee customarily charged in the locality for similar legal services;
(4)  the amount involved and the results obtained;

(5)  the time limitations imposed by the client or by the circumstances;
(6)  the nature and length of the professional relationship with the client;

(7 the experience, reputation, and ability of the lawyer or lawyers performing
the services; and

(8)  whether the fee is fixed or contingent on results obtained or uncertainty of
collection before the legal services have been rendered.

Rule 1.04(b).5

Memo re Billing for Legal Fees and Expenses
Page 2 of 9

91



As to the basis or rate of fees, the Rules have historically recognized that the fee may be a
fixed amount or an estimated amount or an hourly charge. It is not necessary that the lawyer and
client specify in writing or otherwise all the factors that underlie the basis of the fee so long as
they come to a common understanding of the main factors involved, an understanding that will
likely evolve as circumstancés change in ongoing or repeat representations.

Likewise, as to the types or methods of charging fees, the Rules provide:

Historically lawyers have determined what fees to charge by a variety of methods.

Commonly employed are percentage fees and contingent fees (which may vary in

accordance with the amount at stake or recovered), hourly rates, and flat fee

arrangements, or combinations thereof.

Rule 1.04 comment 3.6

Our Agreements on Basis or Rate of Fees,
Method of Charging Them, and Their Amount

It is important that we distinguish the fee arrangement we agreed on —a “fixed lump-sum
flat fee” for the Litigation and Legal Advisor legal services customarily provided and an hourly
rate for certain additional litigation and other legal services -- from other types of legal fee
arrangements’. Rule 1.04 uses “flat fee” (without any modifiers indicating that the fee is
nonrefundable or is paid in advance for the engagement itself or for services not yet rendered) and
“fixed fee” interchangeably.? Here we are using “lump-sum fee” to mean the same thing and are
using all three terms to refer to an ethically and legally permissible and commonly used method
for charging and paying —

o a specified lump-sum dollar amount for all or a designated category of legal services;

o a fee for legal services that have all already been rendered;

o a fee that is not “contingent” on the outcome of the matter for which the service 1s
rendered;

Memo re Billing for Legal Fees and Expenses
Page 3 of 9

92



o a fee that, when billed and when paid, is fully earned by and belongs entirely to the
lawyer so that the lawyer is not required by Rule 1.14 to keep any part of it in a “trust”
or “escrow” account for the benefit of the client rather than in the lawyer’s operating

account;

o a fee that is not, in whole or in part, a “true retainer” or “non-refundable retainer”, as
those terms are narrowly used by the Texas Supreme Court Committee on Professional
Ethics and the courts to refer to permissible up-front payments solely to secure a

lawyer’s availability for future legal services and to compensate the lawyer for loss of
opportunities for other employment; and

o afeethat is not, in whole or in part, a “non-refundable flat fee” as that and similar terms
are used by the Texas Supreme Court Committee on Professional Ethics and the courts
to refer to prohibited up-front payments that include payment for future legal services
rather than payment solely for securing the lawyer’s availability for future legal
services and compensating the lawyer for loss of opportunities for other employment.

In deciding on a fee arrangement with a “fixed lump-sum flat fee” for the Litigation and

Legal Advisor legal services customarily provided and an hourly rate for certain additional
litigation and other legal services and in deciding on the amounts of those fees, we considered
many factors, including but not limited to those listed below. Against the background of our shared
experience over the 32 years that I have provided legal services to TAD and TAD’s experience
with the dozen or so other law firms that have provided it legal services over its 39-year history,

we gave particular attention and weight to the following factors:

1) Rule 1.04(b)(1) - the time and labor required, the novelty and difficulty of the questions
involved, and the skill requisite to perform the legal service properly;

Rule 1.04(b)(4) - the amount involved and the results obtained; and

Rule 1.04(b)(5) - the time limitations imposed by the client or by the circumstances.
Like other large appraisal districts, TAD routinely carries a high volume of
litigation. The number of appeals to Tarrant County District Courts from TARB
orders determining protests and motions has steadily increased in recent years to a

record high of about 1100 in 2018.

In 2017, I was responsible for ongoing cases plus about 230 new cases filed that
year. The values of the properties, mostly commercial, in the new cases totaled

Memo re Billing for Legal Fees and Expenses
Page 4 of 9

93



over $2.8 billion. The property value in each case averaged over $12.8 million.
From January through November 2018, I bave been responsible for 238 new cases,
mostly commercial properties. With the new cases being opened and the completed
cases being closed, the number of cases I was responsible for in each of those
months averaged 171.

In recent years, the volume and complexity of legal work required in the Legal
Advisor category (including lawsuits other than appeals to Tarrant County District
Courts from TARB orders determining protests and motion) has also increased.

The volume of Litigation work and, to a lesser extent, the volume of Legal Advisor
work are driven in part by fluctuations in the real estate economy. And the flow
and pace of all the Litigation work and much of the Legal Advisor work is driven
by the property tax calendar. Nevertheless, based on records of recent years and
projections for the near future, we have agreed for planning and reporting purposes
that my Litigation caseload and my Legal Advisor workload now and in the
foreseeable future constitute 62% and 38%, respectively, of my legal services to
TAD.

Managing the increasing volume and the uneven flow and pace of the combined
workload is not a job for the inexperienced or faint of heart. It takes long hours and
agile juggling of tasks that require quick recall and skillful application of detailed
substantive laws and procedural rules. I have a proven history of doing what’s
necessary to get these jobs done effectively and efficiently year after year.

Because TAD’s legal work is fast-paced, high-volume, and tightly regulated, we
must and do stay in close communication. In a single day, we often exchange
dozens of written assignments, reports, authorizations, and other correspondence
and several phone calls. In this environment, detailed recounting of each task in
itemized billing statements is not necessary and wastes time better spent on getting
the work done.

2) Rule 1.04(b)(3) - the fee customarily charged in the locality for similar legal services

Other law firms that regularly handle TAD’s appeals to Tarrant County District
Courts from TARB orders determining protests and motions currently bill and are
paid based on hourly rates of $185 or $200. Law firms providing other
governmental law and labor law services currently bill and are paid based on hourly
rates of $295, $360, and $400+. The State Bar of Texas reports that a median hourly
rate of $281 per hour for full-time private practitioners in Texas in 2017.° These
statistics support the reasonableness of the hourly rate of $200 per hour we agreed
o<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>